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Company Limited
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2023 11
2023 11
2023 11
8.04 1,164
1,335,204 193,338
2014 8.11 1,174
10 7.51 1,087
1,179,159 170,742
2015 7.58 1,098
11 6.64 961
587,539 85,076
(2016 ) 6.72 973
12 6.88 996
561,947 81,370
(2017 ) 6.97 1,009
13 6.94 1,005
508,057 73,567
2018 7.03 1,018
14 6.58 953
467,247 67,657
2019 6.68 967
15 5.90 854
439,560 63,648
2020 5.99 867
16 6.32 915
471,093 68,214
2021 6.42 930
17 5.64 817
340,195 49,260
2022 5.73 830
18 5.26 762
249,863 36,180
2023 5.35 775
5.34 773
2022 12 261,202 37,822
5.43 786
5.35 775
2023 260,227 37,681
5.45 789
5.25 760
252,980 36,632
5.34 773
5.26 762
251,973 36,486
5.36 776
5.26 762
249,863 36,180
5.35 775
5.22 756
245,546 35,555
5.32 770
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5.19 752

242,555 35,122
5.29 766
5.21 754

241,475 34,966
5.31 769
5.19 752

237,818 34,436
5.28 765
5.05 731

227,766 32,981
5.15 746
5.00 724

10 222,609 32,234
5.09 737
5.20 753

11 221,212 32,031
5.30 767
0.444 64.29
2013 2014 30 0.396 57.34
10 0.435 62.99
2014 2015 30 0.387 56.04
11 0.408 59.08
2015 2016 30 0.360 52.13
12 0.408 59.08
2016 2017 30 0.360 52.13
13 0.408 59.08
2017 2018 30 0.360 52.13
14 0.404 58.50
2018 2019 30 0.357 51.69
15 0.348 50.39
2019 2020 30 0.312 45.18
16 0.258 37.36
2020 2021 30 0.222 32.15
17 0.240 34.75
2021 2022 30 0.204 29.54
18 0.240 34.75
2022 2023 30 0.204 29.54
0.020 2.90

2022 12
0.017 2.46
0.020 2.90
2023

0.017 2.46
0.020 2.90
0.017 2.46
0.020 2.90
0.017 2.46
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0.020 2.90

0.017 2.46

10 0.020 2.90

0.017 2.46

1 0.020 2.90

0.017 2.46
2013 2014 30 6.54 5.85
10 2014 2015 30 1.19 1.79
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
15 2019 2020 30 5.43 6.02
16 2020 2021 30 11.67 11.02
17 2021 2022 30 7.04 7.65
18 2022 2023 30 2.49 3.09

NAV

e KA~ 4 _
e HAENAY '

NAV 1
NAV

2022 12

2023 11 30 1.39
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2013 15,900 94,550 625,570
15,900 94,550 625,570
2014 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014 (1,650) (116,400) (510, 820)
2015 30 ’ ’ ’
11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457, 250)
2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
o017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
(3,132,640) (168,260) (3,387,770)
2018 30
14
2018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2019 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
15
201 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
2020 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
16
2020 9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
2021 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
17
2021 1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
2022 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
18
2022 548,870 6,909,440 13,612,990
548,870 6,909,440 13,612,990
2023 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
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2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
2014 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
11
2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
2017 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
13
po17 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
0 8,861,870 60,047,420
2018 ) (8,861,870) (60,047,420)
2019 30 T T
15
0 5,285,895 54,761,525
2019 ) (5,285,895) (54,761,525)
2020 30 T T
16
0 5,520,480 49,241,045
2020 ) (5,520,480) (49,241,045)
2021 30 B T
17
0 9,556,560 39,684,485
2021 ) (9,556,560) (39,684,485)
2022 30 B T
18
0 6,385,355 33,299,130
2022 ) (6,385,355) (33,299, 130)
2023 30 B B
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2023 11 2023 11
2022 12 352,040 3,710,975 12,276,065
2023 11 30 (352,040) (3,710,975) (12,276,065)
2022 12 0 4,823,464 29,726,816
2023 11 30 ) (4,823,464) (29,726,816)
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12
Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*#
493 23,871 6,077
2,639,074 142 1,609,014
o 49,859,000
2,639,567 24,013 5,715,427 49,859,000 1,615,091
8§ 5,444,964
*#
*# 50,553
*#
8,195 11
2,059,649 9,675 1,837,396
2,118,397 9,675 5,444,964 1,837,407
521,170 14,338 270,463 49,859,000 (222,316)
# T 521,170 49,859,000 (213,270)
14,338 270,463 (9,046)
TBA folal 1,261,430
TBA *x
50,856,275
TBA (213,270)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 2,202,817 1,486,510 646,358
87,407 10,359
29,924 79,015
**%
2,202,817 1,486,510 29,924 812,780 10,359
§
*#
* # 3,656,841 1,186,917 607,390
*#
16,778 3,483
35,536 83,050
3,656,841 1,186,917 35,536 707,218 3,483
(1,454,024) 299,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
#H T (1,429,547) 250,000
(24,477) 49,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
TBA folal
TBA ** 250,000
TBA il (1,429,547)
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JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan  Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,813,014 300,958 930,697
3,624 43,532
# 1,840,679 20,358
**%
1,844,303 1,813,014 300,958 994,587
§
* 4 315,519
* # 1,317,496 54,545 837,716
*#
62,437
10,140 94,121 200,066
# 1,894,231 40,609
1,904,371 1,379,933 54,545 1,287,965 200,066
(60,068) 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (200,066)
#H T 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (120,649)
(60,068) (79,417)
TBA *x 142,102
TBA ** 570,000 115,000
TBA il (294,532) (120,649)
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State Street Bank Toronto- UBS AG WestPac
and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Banking Corp.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*# 7,380,354
75,072 35,963 1,851 5,977 294,226
# 3,336 1,474,044 7,695,586
o 49,859,000
75,072 39,299 1,475,895 5,977 70,944,593
8§ 5,444,964
* 4 315,519
*# 7,711,458
*#
62,437
195,122 409 140,708 566 669,599
# 5,447 665,706 6,631,299
195,122 5,856 806,414 566 20,835,276
(120,050) 33,443 669,481 5,411 50,109,317
#H T (110,678) 669,481
(9,372) 33,443 5,411
TBA folal 1,403,532
TBA kel 680,000 1,615,000
50,856,275
TBA ** (110,678) (2,168,676)
*
**
#
#
8§
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2022 30
§ 8,171,967
*#
*#
*#
13,404 18,952 124,109
# 7,976,338 7,849,045
> f 18,054
*x 27,293,000
8,007,796 18,952 8,171,967 27,293,000 7,973,154
§ 7,931,350
*#
*# 526,442
*#
# 1,438 104,096 5,281
# 9,650,726 12,236,526
# 799,438 3,611,405
10,978,044 104,096 7,931,350 15,853,212
(2,970,248) (85,144) 240,617 27,293,000 (7,880,058)
#H T (2,970,248) 27,293,000 (7,677,498)
(85,144) 240,617 (202,560)
TBA folel
TBA **
27,838,861
TBA i (3,019,481) (293,888) (7,677,498)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,380,069 1,617,276 1,077,223
21,804 23,549
# 624,623 2,096,341
x4 656,256
**k
1,380,069 1,617,276 624,623 3,851,624 23,549
§
*#
*# 4,325,671 3,917,623 2,954,218
*#
# 11,012 196,546
# 419,757 2,863,839
# 544,395
4,325,671 3,928,635 419,757 6,558,998
(2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,707,374) 23,549
#H T (2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,675,908)
(31,466) 23,549
TBA folel
TBA il 280,000
TBA il (3,013,198) (2,336,510) (2,675,908)

122/271



JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan

Merrill Lynch

EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,967,404 244,782 1,042,168
142,299
44,973 263,925 467,356
2,959,257 468,923
il 1,767,537 2,303,801 1,938,388
**k
4,771,767 2,109,703 244,782 4,078,817 2,405,744
§
*# 251,036
*# 1,677,342 426,232 1,425,997
*#
# 4,455 8,070 13,300
3,365,012 712,040
# 4,272,845 3,228,280 3,387,403
7,642,312 1,677,342 426,232 5,625,423 3,400,703
(2,870,545) 432,361 (181,450) (1,546,606) (994,959)
#H T (2,790,999) 300,000 (181,450) (1,375,667) (861,714)
(79,546) 132,361 (170,939) (133,245)
TBA *x
TBA ** 300,000
TBA il (2,790,999) (349,856) (235,929) (1,375,667) (861,714)
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State Street Bank Toronto- UBS AG Wells Fargo WestPac
and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.
2022 30
§ 8,171,967
*#
*#
*# 7,328,922
142,299
967,473 116,121 38,055 41,449 2,141,170
1,232,686 4,566,367 2,153,767 29,927,347
> f 1,826,533 8,510,569
*x 27,293,000
967,473 1,348,807 6,430,955 2,153,767 41,449 83,515,274
§ 7,931,350
*# 251,036
*# 15,253,525
*#
# 193,217 562,998 1,340,409 606 2,441,428
461,881 2,518,846 1,243,872 33,472,499
# 361,379 945,478 17,150,623
193,217 1,386,258 4,804,733 1,243,872 606 76,500,461
774,256 (37,451) 1,626,222 909,895 40,843 7,014,813
#H T 774,256 (37,451) 1,500,000 909,895

126,222 40,843
TBA i 892,484 842,668 1,735,152
TBA i 1,500,000 80,000 2,160,000
27,838,861
TBA i (131,974) (24,762,622)
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Combined statements of financial position

End af each reporting period
April 30

ASSETS
Current Assets Hotes 2023 22T
Finan<ial assets at Falr value through profitor loss ® 34,812 5536,157.50 SRR 436218
Sales of Investments awaiting settiemen B 116551718 199948 B14
Receable forvariation margin on futures contracts 4,8 142,298
Receivable for variation margin on centrally cleaned swap contracts 4.8 FTia63 J4DBIT
Interestand other recelvables B0, 580 4050447
Cash and cash equivalents EN B.212.515 45,766,227
Tatal Assets GEE 287625 1,200,584, 632
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial labilities at fad'wal _.-'-I:i'ura:-.:;.;"a profit o loss * 14812 130,008,311 468032 203
Punchases off Investmants awalting settiamant B 11 284507459 5 H31.373
Reddemptions of units awaiting settlerment 3 113921 1.533,148
Payable for varlation margin on futures conracts 48 B2A43T
Fayable tor management bees 8,49 230,820 TTEOIT
Fayabie for custady and administrative fees 8,9 14,314 115,066
Collzteral o certain darivative contracts, atvalue 8 3,018,532 3595152
Dl aecruced eapenies 8,9 B50.550 347 553
Total Liabilities {excluding net assets attributable to holders
af redeemable units) 418,459,154 BEQ,572,522
Met Assets attributable to helders of redeemable units at bidfask prices 1.4 5249,838,371 5340,002,110
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putnam Doversitiod Income Trust (Cayman) LMD BED 54 L340, 194,751

* S Mot 33

I he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements

Putrnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) &
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the years ended
April 30

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) Hates FLivE] 2022
Interestirom financial assets and financial Habélities at fairvalue through profitor loss 3,8 SET6TTI02 521,185,084
Met reaized and ehamnge in unneaized gair wlngs) of auwers and iahiaies in foraipn curmaneim (21,3040 (148 153
Nan reatized and change inunreatzed gainloss) on financial assets and Enancial liabitives an fair

value through profit e loss (32 ATE 0] (47,081 134
et increase from payrents by alfiliates pld} 138 119854
Total oparating income/loss] 14,820, 509] (26,824, 358)
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management lees L] 3981404
Custady foes 9 116,210
Administrative foes g £8,640 81107
fransfer agent fees 4 379,955 R

rustee fees 9 TiH39 E2.500
At fees 9 94,130 BH.930
Uther expenses 9 BLYE 106,030
Reimbursal from Manager ] (258.433) [v2.533)
Total operating expenses 4,543,676 6,499,187
Operating profit/iloss) (8,364,185} 133,323,546)
Finance Costs
Pestributionsto holders of redesmable units T (E1,104.200) 114,682, 3500
Profit/{Loss) after distributions (20,465,586} [48,005,905]
Increase][Decrease] in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
from operations (520,465, 588) [548,005,905)

I he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements

Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) ]
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Net Assets attributable to helders of redecmable units at the Beginning of year
Increase/(Decrease] in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units

from operations
REDEEMABLEUNIT TRANSACTIONS

Pripasieks from units istued

lassd
lass M
Increase/[Decrease] in net assets resulting frem redeermable wnit transactions.

Met Assets attributable to helders of redeemable units at the end of year
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For the years ended
April 30
Motes 2023 2022
5340012, 110 5471,054,227
(20,465, 588} (48,0405 905)
2968 56T B 21600

&

he accomypanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements
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w0, 7 19, 0I6)

[54,533,198]

(69,718,253} (23,096,212}
1.6 5249,828,271 5340,012,110
Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 10
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Combined statements of cash flows

For the years ended
April 30

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Hotes 2023 iy
Increasef{Decrease} in net assats antributaile to holders of redeemabie units from operations (50,465, 586) (548,005,905
Ad;._:lm.—rnr [ E e ete et n:w-":ll:ing_ :-.-.-vcslir,-:j o] for the Final period toonet cash ganarated froemyf
{uisad in) oper il!il'rg_ Actyities

Interest from financial assats and Enancial Rabilities at fairvalue through peofit or loss 3 (25176133 141,316,164)

Destriputions to the holdars of redeemable units T 1130340k 14, 82355

et amortization of premiums TA9ETAL 20,131,105

Exchange gairsTinsses) on cash and cash equivalents 21,599 148,163

(27,020,178) [54,360,467)

Nt incressalidecroase insalies of imestments awaiting settierment & 1E1357. 006 1215 854,006)
ket 11:'._'!:::15_-:‘."-:€_lrp_r-'.a_sg‘. In Fhlrrlwy:sv.‘#"w:_ﬂm!:rftg e._-n!ail:ir_lg_ settlement H 1% ':]ﬂ1:'__+.7‘19'.-‘-.‘- H-B.H?SB#-‘
Mot Increasalfdecrease inreceivade lorvasrlation margln onfutures contracts 4.8 142,299 (142 2%
Mt Increaselfdecrease in receivaile for variation margin oncentrally cleared swap contracts 4.8 [ 648 [220,617)
et increase/{decrease) In payable for custody and administrative fees 8,3 54,248 BT 28]
Het "r::'az;e.«'::decr_e_ase‘. inpayabie fcr' wariation marginon fu bures COnracts 4.3 62,437 {1 B, A57)
Net increaseidecrease] in payabile for variation marginon centrally cleared swap conkracts 4.8 — (73,507)
Net inerease(decrease) inpayable for management fees 8,9 (542,207 5937
Met increasedecreas) incollateal on certain derivative contracts, atvalue B \ETE R0 3,345,152
et ingrease Mlecieaby) in payabie lor gehies acctued Expenies 8.9 (42.003) 55T
Wit inerease] e riase 'lF'h!'K_'ﬂI.“u:‘I!iaH;Iir\'illi._'l"tl:u:ﬂ..'}-_‘.'l.pr!)‘i!l.'ﬂ' s 34,813 314,778,659 46,359,778
Metincrepse (decrease) infinancal [abilities at fairvalue throeph proftor oss 3,481} (338030882 J42E1BAT
Cash flows generated from/[used in) cperating activities 28,074,119 110,534,707
Interest received 16532 649 21,620,510
Met cash generated from(used in) operating activities 44,706,968 132,155,217
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Déstributions paid to the halders nh\:dﬁemen{e units T (11,301, 408) {18 GEZ 354
Procecds from redesrmabie units (] 4568, 56T 9041521
Redamptions of redeematie units b {74,106,047) (41,168, 154)
Net cash generated fromilused i) inancing activties s223sas)  (96,800037)
Met increase/idecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (37,531,913 35,346,150
Cash and cash equivalents at beginneng ol year 3.8 £5.766,207 10,568,210
Exchange [gains]/insses on cash and cash equlvaents (21,395 [145,163]
Cash and cash equivabents at end of year 3.8 $8,212,915 §45,T66,227

The accompanying motes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) il
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/20/23

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Mates to combined finarcial staterments, references to "State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Compary
ard references 1o "OTCT, if ary, represent over-the-counter, Referenoes o "Tunds' net as5e15” are based on net assets of $249 828,271 at April 30,
2023, 5340012 110 at April 30, 2022, Unless otherwise noted, the “reparting pericd” represents the period from May 1, 2022 thraugh Apeil 30, 2023

Putnam Dhsessified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund [the *Master Fund®) is a series trust of the Putnam Cffshare Master Series Trust (the
“Master Trust™), pursant (o a Master 3ase Trust Deed dated August 18, 7006 and a Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005
berween FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Compary iCayman) Limited ard The Putnam Advisory Comparny, LLE [PaC). Putram
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) {the "Feeder Fund™) is a series trust of the Putnam Offshare Feeder Series Trust (the "Feeder Trust™), pursuant
o a Feeder Base Trust Deed dated July L3, 2005 (as amended; and a Feeder Supplemental Truss Deed dated July 13, 7005 (as amended) between
MaplesS Limited and The Putram Advisory Company, LLC. The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Act (As Revised)
of the Cayman slands,

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as.a master/feeder fund struciure {collectively the “funds”) (each individually a ~fund”) wherehy
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are imsested in units of the Master Fund. These combined financial statements are in respect
of the fumds, comprising the Master Furd ard the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and reconds are maintaired for each fund in order to determire the net asset value for the Feeder Furd. The Feeder Fund has the
same inherent risks as the Master Furd.

The manager of the furds is The Putram Advisory Compary, LLC (the "Marager®), alimited lability company organized under the laws of the State
of Delaware, U.5.A. State Street (the “Custodian” is the custedian of the funds.

The investment ohjective of the funds is to seek as high a level of current income as the Manager believes is consistent with presenvation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds’ objective by investing mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments amd orher
ohligations of companies and governments worldwide, are eitherinvestment-grade or below imestment-grade (high yield bonds), and have
intermediate o lerg-termn mamsrities (ihree yoars of lorger,

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined firarcial statements have been prepared in compliance with intemational Firancial Reporting Standards (*1F 5% as publisked
by the international Accounting Standards Board (TASE7). The principal accounting paolicies have been applied consistently by the funds for all
perinds presented, unless otheradse stated. Prior pefiod amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the curment period presentation,

Current pericd and prioryear combined iirancial statements of the funds are presented on a combined basis a5 management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent ane reporting entity given the manrer in which the entities ane maraged. References to the
finencial statements hereafter are to be considered on a combined basis. intragroup balanges and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividerds, are elirinazed in full

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions concerning the futune that may affect the reported amounts of assets and Fabilities. Estimates

are continually evaluated and based on histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are beliswed o be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and differences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fellowing is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparning the financial statements.

The fmancial statements bave been prepared on a bistorical cost bases, as modified by the revalwation of firancial assets and [rabilities clas-
sified at fairvalve through profit or loss, The preparation of firancial statements in conformitywith IFRS, requires management to make esti-

mates and assumplions that effect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accom panying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates,

{a) Financial instruments

{i} Classification

The Master Furd classifiesits investments bBased on bath the Master Fund's busiress model for maraging those financial assetsand

the contractual cash flow charactenistics of the fimancia assets, The portiolio of financial assets is managed and performance is cvalu-
ated on a fair value basis. The Master Fund is primarify focused on fairvalue information and uses that information to assess the assets”
performance and to make decisions, The Master Fund has not 1aken the option o imevocably designate army equity securities as fairvalpe
through ether comprehersive income. The contractual cash fllows of the Master Fund's debt secunities are solely principal and interesr,
hewever, these securities are not held for the purpose of collecting cortractual cash flows. The collection of contractual cash fiows is only
ircidental to achievirg the Master Fund's business maodel's objective, Corsequaontly, all investments are measured at fair value through
prafit or loss. Derivative contracts that bave a negative fairvalue are presented as liabilities at fairvalue threuph profit o loss, As such, in

Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) i
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acoordance with IFRS 9, the Master Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as finarcial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit
ar hoss.

{ii) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of imvestments are recogrized on the trade date - the date onwhich the Master Fund commits to purchase or sell

the irvesomsent, irmestments ane derecognize d when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the imsestments have expired and the Master
Furd has transferned substartially all risks and rewards of ownership, Secunties purchased or sold on a forward commatment and delayed
delivery basis may be settled at a future date beyord customary settiement time; interest income is accreed based on the terms of the
SECUrties, Losses may anse due to changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under

the contract,

Furchases and sales of imvestments awaiting settlement represent payables for securities purchased and recebvables for securitles sold
that kave been contrac ted for but not yet setzled or delivered an the statement of financial position date respectively. The due from
brokers balarce, it ary, is held for collection. These amounts are recognised initially at fairvalue and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Abeach reportieg date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowanoce en amounts due from brokerat an amount eoqual to the
[iFetime expected credit losses if the credit sk kas inoreased significantly since initial recagnition, if, a1 the reporang date, the credit risk
has net increased wgnificantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amaunt equal to L 2-month
expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy cr financial recrgani-
sation, ard defaultin payments ae all considered indeeatons that a loss allswanee may be reduired, IF the credit rask inoieases 1o thi point
thatitis considered o be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the boss
allowance. A significant ircrease in credit risk is defined by maragement as ary contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due.
Ary contraciual payment which is more than 30 days past duee is considered credit impained.

(i} Measurement

Financial assets and Financial liabitities at fairvatue through profit orloss are initially recognized at fairvalue. Transaction costs ae
recorded in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as part of the net realized and change in unrealized gain/fioss) on financial
assers and financal liabiliges a1 fairvalue through profit or loss, Subsequent o initial recogrition, all finarcial assets at fairvalue through
prafit or loss are measured at fair valee. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'Financial Assets or Finarcial
Liabiities at fairvalue throuph profic o loss” category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive imcome {loss! in the periodin
which they arise.

Market quotations are not considered to be readily available for certain debt obligations (including shor-tesm imeesiments with remaining
maturitles of 60 days er less) and other imvestrments; such invesoments arevalued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager. Such services or dealers determine valuations for normnal
institutioral-size trading units of such securities using methods based on marke: ransactions for comparable securities and various rela-
tionskips, generally recognized by institutional iraders, between securities (which consider such faciors as security prices, yields, matur.
ithes ard ratings). These securitics will gererally be categorized as Lewel 2. Certair securities may be valued on the basis of a price previded
by a single scurce. Securities quoted in foneign cumencies, if any, are translated into U5, Dollars at the current exchange rate.

The guoted market prices used for fimancial assets held by the Master Fund are the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price
used for the financial Habilities is the curment asking price, however quoted marke! prices for both financial assets and financial liabilities
Peled rrany Fadll s thir: the bidfask spread,

T the extent a pricing service of dealer is urable to value a security or provides a valuation that the Manager does not believe accy-
ratety reflects the security's fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by the Manager in accardarce with poficies and procedures
approved by the Manager, Certain imvestments, including certain restricted and Biquid securities and derivaties, are also valued at fair
value fellewing procedures approved by the Marager, These valuations considersuch factons as sigrificant marke: or specific security
events such as interest rate or oredit quality changes, various relationships with other securitios, discourt rates, LS, Treasury, LLS, swap
and credit yields, index levels, comendaty exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
chassified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.

Imvestments in collective orgtherinvestment funds arevalued with reference (o their respective net assetvalue per unit on the relevant
valuation date,

For the years ended Apnl 30, 2023 and Apal 30, 2022, no secuntics of derivatives were fairvalued by the Manager,

{b) Off-setting financial instruments

Financial assets and fiabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the Staternents of financial position when there i3 a legally enforceable
right to off-set the recognized amounts and there Is an intention o settle on a net basis, o realize the asset and settle the liability simulianegusly.

{c} Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest is recognised on a time-proportionate basls using the effective interest method. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents, Imterest from firarcial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities, income received from collective
orather imvestment funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as earmed by the underlying investment, All premiomes,
discounts are amortizedfaccreted on a yield-to-maturity basis. The Master Fund earned certain fees in connection with its senior lnan purchasing
activities, These fees are treated as marke: discourt and are amartzed inta income in the Statemerts of comprebensive inoome ([oss),
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{d} Distribution policy

Tistributions to the unitholders from operating prafit/lloss] of the Master Fund will be distributed to unithalders of the Feeder Furd, subject to the
approval of the Manager, Income distributions, if amy, will be made monthly. Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund are recognized as a
firance costin the Statements of comprebensive income (Ioss), Distrbutions from capizal gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paid az beast annually,

{e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprizes current deposits with barks, including foreign currendies. Cash equivalents are shart-term highly liguid imvestments that are
readily comvertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue, and are held for the purpose of meeting
shart-term cash needs rather than for imvestments or other purposes. Bank overdrafts, if any, ace shawn as payable to custodian in the
Statements of finarcial position.

April 30
Cash and cash equivalents 1023 2022
Faweign cazh ¥476 265
IS0 cash 175,144 35, 404
Cashequivalents 8,037,345 45,729 568
Total cash and cash equivalents §8,212,915 548,766,227

{f} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delivery of the urderlying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase is required to
bein an amaount aj least equal 1o the resale price, including accrued interest, Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreemients, which totaled
550,856, 275 (2022: 527,838 851} at the end of the veporting pernad, is held at the counterparty's custadian in a segregated accaunt fof the benefit
of the Master Fund ard the counterparty. The Manager is responsible for determining that the value of these underlying securities is at all times at
least equal to the résale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankruptcy by the other party to the agreement, retention of
the collateral may be subject oo legal proceedings.

(g} Stripped securities

The Master Furd may imeest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be structured in classeswith rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-anty securities receive all of
the principal. If the interest=onty Securities experience greater thar anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Furd may fail to recoup fully
its iritial imvestment in these securizies. Conversely, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater than anticipated and
dectine if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to chanpges in interest rates.

{h} Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund ard Feeder Fund are maintained in LS. Doflars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units. The Manager considers the ULS. doliar the currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions, The U.5. dollar is the cumency in which the funds
mieasure their performance and repoe: their results. This determiration also considers the campetitive emdronments in which the furds
are compared toother investment products, The financial statement s are presented in U5 dollars.

{ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the excharge rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
tins, The costof cach security is determined using historical exchange rates, Income, expenses and withkolding tases ane ransiated at
prevailing excharge rates when sarned or incured. The Master Furd does notisslate that portion of realired or unrealized pains or losses
resulting from changes in the fareign exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices of the
securites, Foreisn exchanpe gans and botses arisinp from trarslation and fercign exchange gains and lotses relating to cash and cazh
equivalerts are presented in the S2atements of comprehensive income {loss) as et realized ard change in unrealized gainiloss) of assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies, Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-monetary financial assets and Fabilities
such as equaties at fairvalue through profic and less are recognized in the Satements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and
ehange in unfealized gain/ioss) on fimancial assers and firancial liabdises a1 fair value through profit or loss. imestments in fareign secu-
rities invabee certain risks, including those related to ecoromic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency flectuations,
net present with domestic imvestrments,

(i) TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into T84 {to be announced) commitments to parchase securities for a fived uniz price at a future date beyord
customary settiement time. Although the urit price and par amount have been established, the actual securities have not been specified.
However, itis anticlpated that the amount of the commibments will not significantly differ from the principal amount, The Master Fund halds, and
maintains until settiement date, cash o high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the securities will not be earned until settiement date.
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The Master Furnd may also enterinto TEA sale commitments to hedgeits portfolio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securnities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or to take a shart position in mortgage-backed securities. Proceeds of TEA sale commitments ane nat received
wntil the contractuz] settlement date, During the time a THA sale commitment isoutstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an offset-
tng T 2A purchase commitment deliverable o or before the sale commitment date are held s “cover” for the transas tion, or ather liquid assessin
an amaurt equal tothe national value of the TRA sale commitment are segrepated. I the TRA sale commitment is closed thraugh the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes 2 gain or loss, If the Master Fund delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain of 4 loss from the sale of the secuntios based upon the urit price established at the date the commitment was
entered into,

TBAcommitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themsetves, and involve a riskof Inss
due to charges ir the value of the security prior i the settlerment date a5 well as the risk that the counterparty 1o the trassaction will not perferm
its obligatians, Courterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement bebween the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TRAcommitments are valued at their fairvalue according to the procedures described under "Measurement” above, The contract is
marked o market daily and the chanpe in falrvabue is recorded by the Master Furd as an uerealized gain or loss, Based on marker circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take defivery of the underlying securities or to dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settiement,

4, DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may serve as a component of the Master Fund's imvestment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and economically
hedge imesiments o enbance performance and reduce risk 1o the funds, or for ather imestment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
amy derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 8 and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi-
fied at fair value through profitor loss, The dervative conteacts that the Master Fund may hold or issue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, aptions, certain currercy transactions and swap contracts,

The Master Fund may enter into options contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or excharge rates move urexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perfoom, 1#
awmitter call opton is exercised, the premium orginally received is recorded asan addition o sales proogeds, 1T awrithen put oplion is exercised,
the premium originally received is recorded as a reduction to the cost of investments. Exchange-raded aptions are valued at the last sale price
o, if no sales are reported, the 1ast bid price for purchased options and the last ask price forweitten optiors, OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is to buy or grant the
right to enter into a previously agreed upon interest rateor credit default contract. Forward premiuny swap option contracts include premiums
that have exverded settlement dates, The delayed settlement of the premiums i factored into the dady valuation of the option contracts. In
thecaze of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in retum for a premivm, ongoing payments between two parties ane based on intenest rates
exceeding aspecified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling betow a specified rate in the case of a floor contract,

The Master Fund may enter into futunes contracts, Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying irstruments, i there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or excharge rates move urexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform,
With furures, there is minimal counterparty credit nisk to the furds since futures are exchange traded and the exchange’s clearinghouss, as coun-
terparty toall exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures agains: default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Staterments of finan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund reconds a realized gain or boss equal to the difference between thevalue of the contract
atthe time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed, Futunes contracts are valued at the quated dadly settlement prices established
by the excharge o which they trade. The Master Fund and the broker agree 10 exchange an amaunt of ¢ ash equal to the daily Fluctuation in the
value of the fumres contract. Such receipis or payments are known as “variation margin.”

The Master Fund may ey and sell forward currercy contracts, which are agreements between two parties to buy and sell currencies at aset
price on a future date. The LS, doltar value of forward currercy contracts is determaned wsing current forward curmency exchange rates suppliod
by a quotation service, The fairvalue of the conact will fluctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to markes
dlaily and the change infair value is recorded as anunrealized gain or loss, The Master Furd records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference
between the value of the contract at the ime it was opened and the value at the time it was closed when the contract matures or by delivery of
thecurrency, The furds could be exposed 1o risk if the value of the currency charges unfavorably, if the counterparties 1o the contracts are unable
o meet the terms of their contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter inta a closing position, Risks may exceed ameunts recogrized on the
Statemnents of financial position,

Thie Master Fund may enter into OTC and/for centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between bwo parties to
exchange cash flows based on a notioral principal amcunt, An OTC and centrally cleaned interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
upfront premium. For OTC interest rate swap contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master
Fund's books., An upfront payment made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset o the Master Fund's books. OTC and certrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily bated upon quatations fram an independent pricing service or market makers. Any
change is reconded as an unrealized gain or loss on O7TC interest race swaps. Daily fluctuations in the valuve of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are settled thraugh a central clearing agen: ard are generally recorded Imvariation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded
as unrealized gain or loss. Payments, including upfront premiums, recefved or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the contract, Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may incivde exterded effective dates, Payments related
o these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market rizk due to unfavorable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaulzs, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
of acleaning member defsults, i the case of centrally cleartd berest rate swap contracts, of it respecthe abiligation 1@ perfarm under the
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contract, The funds” maximum risk of Ioss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigazed
for OTC interest raze swap contracts by having a master retting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally
cleared interess rate swap contracts due o the cleanimghouse guarantee furd ard other rescurces that are avadlable in the event of a clearing
member defalt. Risk of loss may exceed amaunts recognized on the Statements of financial position.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/for centrally cleared iotal return swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-lirked
return for a pericdic payment, both based on a rational principal amount, To the extent that the wtal refurn of the secunity, index or acher finan-
cial measure underlying the transaction exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
from or make a payment ta the courterparty. O7C andjor centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upan
quetations from an independent pricing Senvioe ar marketmakers, Ay change is recorded a5 an unrealized gair or loss on OTC total redurm swaps,
Dhaity flupe tuaticns in the value of centrally cleared total return swaps ane gettled through a central clearing apert and are peneratly recorded in
variation margin on the Statements o financial pasitior and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Payments received or made are reconded as
realized pains or losses. Certain OTC and)or centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effective dates, Payments related
o these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due toun’avorable
changes in the flucteation of interest rates or in the price of the urderlying security of index, the poscibility that there is no liqued market for these
agreements or that the counterpar ty may default on its chligation to perform. The funds’ masimum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central
clearing risk is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for 74 wofal rewrn swap contracts by having a master netting arange-
ment between the Master Furd and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation
masgin, There is mirimal courterparty risk with respect wo centrally cleared total returm swap contracts due to the cleaninghouse guarantee fund
ard cther resources that are available in the event of aclearing member default, Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Staterments
of financial position,

The Master Fund may enter imto OTC and/for centrally cleared credit default contracts. in OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracs, the
prozection buyer typically makes a periodic strearm of payrments to-a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a
cortingent payment upan the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked abligations of the reference
entity, Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuning and obligation acceleration, For O7C credic
default contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as aliability or the Master Fund's beaks An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books, Centrally cleared credit defaul: contracts provide the same rights
o the pratec tion buver and seller except the payments between partics, including upfrent premeums, ane settlod through a central cleanng apent
throuph variation margin payments. Upfront and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centralty cleared credit
defaul contracis are recorded as reallzed gains or losses a1 the reset date or close of the contract. The O7C and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked o market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change in value of

OTC credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss, Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts
are generally recoaded in variation margin on the Statements of firancial pecition and recorded a5 unrealized gain or loss, Upor the occurmence
of a credit event, the difference between the parvalue and fair value of the reference chiigation, net of any propostional amaunt of the upfront
payment, is recorded as a realized gain of loss, In addition 1o bearing the risk that the credit eventwill oocur, the furds could be exposed 1o marker
risk due to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the undertying security or index or the possibility that the Master Furd may be
wnabde to close out its position at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased the underlying reference obligations, In certain ciroum-
stances, the Master Fund may enterinto offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss, Risks

of loss may exceed amounts recopnized on the Statements of financial position. The funds' maximam riskof loss from counterparty risk, either

as the proection selleror as the pratection buyer, is the fair value of the contract, This risk may be matigated for OTC credit defaul contracts by
Faving a master netting arrangement between the Master Furd and the counterparty ard for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
the daily exchange of variation margin, Courterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts

due te the clearinghouse guarantee furd and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Where the Master

Furd iz 3 seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Furd may be required to make is equal to the
notional amount,

neome related 1o swap corracisis accrued based on the terms of the contract, Recevables and payables relied 1o closed swap conracts
are presented in the Financial assets or Finarcial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss lice items on the Statements of financial position.
Realized and unreatized gains and losses on denvative contracts are included in Net realized and change im unrealized gainfloss) on financial
assets and financial Eabilities at fair value through proficor loss.

The notioeal amownts of certain types of finandial mstruments provide a basis for comparnson with instruments recogrized on the Statements
of financial position, but they do not necessarly indicate the amotnts of future cash flows imvobeed or the curment fairvalue of the instruments
and do not therefare indicate a furd’s exposure 1o credis or market price risks, The dervative instrements become favorable assets) of unfavor
able {liabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their termes, The agaregate contrac tual ernotional
amount of derivative fimancial instruments on hand, the extent towkich instruments ane favorabile or unfavorable, and thus the apgregate fair
values of derivative finarcial assets and liabdlisies can fluctuate sigrificartly from time 1o dme.
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5. TAXATION

Thee Master Fund imvests in securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in courtries other thar the Cayman islands, Mary of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains tases may be applicable 1o non-restdents, such as the funds, Typicalty, these
capital gains tawes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, there‘ore, such taves may nat be deducted by the Master Fund's
brokers on awithhalding basis.

in accordance with 185 12 — Income Taxes, the funds are required to recognize a tax lability when it is probable that the tax laws of fareign coun-
tries require a tax [Ebility to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from such fonsign country, assuming the relevant taxing autharities
rave full knowledge of all the facts and cicumstances. The tax lishility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant
taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have beer enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reperting period. There is
sometimes uncertainty about whether or mot a tax liability will ultimatety be paid by the funds. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevart facts and circumstances available a1 the time which could influence the likelikocd of payment,
ircluding any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

At Apail 30, 2003 ard Apad 30, 2002 the furds had no tpnificant uncertain tax liabedity positiors with respect to foreign capital ains taxes,

6. UNIT CAPITAL AMD REDEEMABLE UNITS

Atthe end of the reparting pericds, April 30, 2003 and April 30, 2003, the Master Furd had Class 5 and Class | Linits available for issue, Unless the
Marager determires otherwise, the minimum iritial imestment for Class S s 300 Units and e mininmam subsequent subscripsion shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute minimam initial investments shall be US$50,000 ar its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determénes ciherwise, the minimum rumber of Class | Urits that can be subscribed for by way of inltial investment shall be 1,000,000
Unis, the minimum aggregate value of the mitial imestment shall be LRS510, 000,000 and the minimum number of Uniss that can be subsceribed for
by way of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absclute minimum aggregate valuee of the initial investment in Class | Units that the
Marager may determine shall be LUS$50,000,

The Feeder Fund has urlimited Units of capital, Each Unitwill represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund, MaplesFS Limited
{the “Feeder Furd Trustee”), at the direction of the Maraper, shall have the power to desigrate and issue Units from time to time by reference o a
separate Class and/for series and determine the mananer in which Units of any Class andfor series differ from Units of 2ny other Cless and/for series,
The Feeder Fund currenthy has two Classes of Units, Class | and Class M Units, which are imdestars into Class 5 of the Master Fund, Class M Units
are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 3.25% and do rot pay a contingent deferred sales charge (COSC). Class J Units do rot pay a
freent-end sales charge ard are subject toa COSC of up 1o 4.00% if those Urits are redeemed within five years of purchase. Unless the Marager
determires atherwise, the minimum irdtial imvestment for Class 1 (CO5C) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimum subseguent
subscriptions shall be 10 Unizs,

The net assetvalue of each class is calculated by dividing the net assets atributable to the bolders of redeemable units of a particular class of
wnits, with the tatal number of autstanding redeemabile units of that class. in aceerdance vath the provisions of the funds' poverning documents,
irvestment positions are valued based on the bidfask market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per urit for subscripsions
ard redempiions, Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units ssued and redeemed are <hown as movements in the Siatements
of changes in net assets attributable to bolders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides its urithalders with the
right to redeem theirinterest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date (generally daily) for cash equal to the proportiorate share of the net asser
value of the Feeder Furd. The Manager, the Transfer Apent or ather delegate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any application far Units
without s1ating ary reason for doing so, The Feeder Fund issues redeemable unics, which are redeemable at the holder's option and are classified
asfinancial liabdites, The redeemable units are carried a2 the redemption amount that i payable at the end of the reparting pericd, I the kolder
exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds,

Unit transactions for the years were as follows:

Master Fund Class S Class|
April 30 April 30
2013 M22 2023 2022
Linits ststanding a1 beginaing of year 45,546,625 57,045 560 1086 1086
Unitsissued 121,235 316,352 - -
Unis redearmead I:!I:I,dﬂ],.'i?‘ﬂ:l (11,818,407 — -
Units outstanding at end of year 35,285,540 45,546,625 1,086 1,086
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Feeder Fund Class i Class M
April 30 April 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
Units utstandig 2t beginaing of yoar 0 684,465 49,241,045 18,973,560 74,493,270
Linis ssued - - 548,670 1361070
Urits redeerned 16,365,355) 15,556,550 16,509,440) {5,880,754)
Units autstanding at end of year 33,299,130 39,684,485 13,612,390 19,873,560

At April 30, 2023, 100% of the Feeder Fund's Class J and Class M redeemable units were held by one unaffiliated investor (2022; 100%), At April 30,
2023, 10¥% of the Master Fund's Class S redeemable units were held by the Feeder Fund (2022: 100%5), AT April 30, 2023, 100% of the Master Fund’s
Class | redeemable units were held by an affiliate of the Manager (2022: 100%,).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Mstributions to the unithalders are made at the discretion of the Maragerin an amount and at such time as determined to be appropriate. At the
erd of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Master Fund Class $ amounted to 511,121,640 or 50,2847 per unit (2022; 514,716,098 or S0,2817
per unit). At the end of the reporting period, there were ra dividends paid to Class | {2022: SMilL

At the end of the reporting pericd, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class | and Class M amcounted to 57,271 833 or S0.304 per unit (2022:
§0,222,928 ar 50.204 per unit) and $3,879 568 or 00 per unit (2022 55,459,431 or 50,24 per uniz), respec tively, Distributions from the Feeder Fund
are recogrized in the Statements of comprehensive imcome (loss) a5 a finance cost,

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have investment guidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their tolerance for risk and their general risk management
philosophy. The funds’ financial assets and liabilities az fair value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which may includes

o lrvestments including fised-income securnities, loating rate securitios and equity securities:
«  Bonds that are securitized debt instrumerts and other obligations of comparies and governments worldwide,
«  Cash and shor-term investments; and

Derivative transactions which the Master Furd enzers into to manage the interest rate and curnency risks anisie g from the Master Furd's
frvestment activities.

{a) Market price risk

While it s the intention of the Manager o implement strategies which are designed 1o mirimize potential losses, there can be ro assurance that
these strategies will be successful. it is possible that an imvestor may lose  substantial proportion or all ofits imeestment. As a result, each investar
should carefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds,

The funds are exposed 1o market nisk fwhich includes market price risk, foreige cusrency risk, interest rate risk), Equidity risk and credit or defauls
risk. The funds’ risk management process consists af a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks ard balances.
The Manager performs pericdic reviews and agrees on palicies for maraging each of these risks and they are summarized below. These policies
Fave remained substantally unchanged sicce the beginring of the pericd to which these financial statements relate.

Market risk arises mainly fromuncertainty about future prices of financial instroments held. It represents the potential koss the funds might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual imestment or factors affecting all
imssrumenss traded in the market, The Manaper considers the asset alocation of the furds inorder 1o minimize the risk associated with particular
countries or industry sectors while continuing 1o follow the funds’imestment objective through a careful selection of securities and ather finan-
cial irstruments within specified limits, Market risk can also patertially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered inte by the furds. The
Marager meatures both the Master Fund's total risk as well as their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.

Under normal market conditicns, the Manager expects 1o imeest 15% - 65% of the Master Fund's net assets in each of these three sectors: LS.
and investment-prade sector - LS, povernment securities and imvestment-grade bonds of U5 companies, High yield sector - lower-rated
bords of LS, companies, and international secior = bonds of foreign govermments and companies, including bath investment grade and
lower-rated securities.

At the-end of the reporting period, investments in LS. securities were approsimatety 1% (2007 approximately 539
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At the end of the eporting periods, the funds potional exposure on derivative Contracts was as folbows:

April 30

2023 22
Putchased ingesest rate swad oplion contracts [contract amaunt) 5893607, 6] $1,719,518.064
WrItTen iBEesT rate WD oobion contracts [contract amaant) 5725984, 779 S1BTHE T3E,447
Futures contracks fnumber of contracts] ™ 430 121
Forward currency contracts [contract amaunt] 532,563,817 5164929048
Centratiy cheared inberest rate swap conracts (notional) 53,198,349,375 51,005,534 464
OTC b return wap condracts (national) 54,355,452 54,355 452
OTC credin dafailt contrachs - prksction purdhased [notional) 523,406 655 535,407,565
{TC credit dafauit contracts - protection sofd inational) 524,518,537 564 R5L5TT

* Forthe periods ended Agel 20, 2003 and April 30, 2022, the Master Fund ofd ot have notone] expedune, in sacess of 10%, as a pereant of net assets, Thers ane
no erher concentrations b currency risk inexcess of 109 of net assots as a result of Barward derivatioe nationals.
** For the reporting period, the Master Fund held LS. Treasury securities with number of contracts totaling 436 and nertlonal amesunts totaling 587,515,625 (2022
U5 Treasury Securities with number of contracts teaaling T21 and nolons amounts totaling $169.786 875},

Thevolume of activity for the reporting pericads for any derivative type that was keld during the perind is listed below and was as follows based an

an average of the holdiegs at the end of each fiscal quarter:

April 340

2023 2022
Punchased TRA comeniiment option contracts [Cantract amount) 5= $17,300,000
Purchased currency option contracts fcontract amount] i 442,000,000
Purchased swap option centracts (contract amount) 41,152, 200,000 41,462,700,000
Written TEA comanitment agtion contracts [eontract amount) i 417,300,000
Written currency agtion contracts [contract amiount) 9= 52,300,000
Written swap option contracts foontract amount) 5645, 200,040 51,37 TAODOM
Futwres contracts [number of contracts] = 500 1,000
Fowward curtency contracks [contract amount) 550,500,000 550,500,000
QT invtirest rang Swap contracts (notional) G ="
Centralhy cheared inberest rate swap contracts (notional) 52,456,200,000 51,262,400,000
QTC todal return swap contract s {national) 548,400,000 59,200,000
Centralhy cleared total ratun Swap consacts rmtiona) = $116,000,000
OTC eredhit defaudt contracts notianal) 558,200,000 5130,800,000
Centratly deared credit default contracts (notional) 52,300,000 5=

* Forthe reporting pariod, thend were no hotdings atthe end of each fiscal quartar and the transactons were considened minimal.

** For the reporting period, averape of the Futures haldings at notional values was 5111,000,000 {3022 $239.700,000).

Aggregate Value at risk

The value at Risk (VaR) ek measune estimaces the maxmum expected loss i pre-taxation profic 35 a percentage of the fund's net assets over a
given halding period for a specified confidence level. The VaR methodalogy is a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into
account marketvolatilites as well as risk diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and correlations between products and markets, Risks
ean be measured consistently across all markets and products, and sk measires can be aggregated to anfive at a single risk number. Given the
interdependencies between market variables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss thas is not expected (o he exceeded at the
99tk percentile confidence lvel overa 1-day horzan, The Marager uses a prophetary multi-facios model to estimane the active risk falsa refered
10 as tracking error) from which YaR estimates can be analytically derived. The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary cuver
tirne a5 a function of market and portfolio composidon changes and are representative of activity during the period.

Given its reliance on historical data, vas is most effective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
ehanges or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent imitation of VaR is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factars may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. Different Vak methodologies and distributional assumptions could produce a materially different
VaR. Moreover, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or offset
with hedges within one day. Chanpes in VaR between reporting periods are generally due to changes in levels of exposure, volatilities and/far
correlations among asser classes.

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 1%
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The table below shows the Va® of the Master Fund forboth stars and end of the review period,

Partfelio Benchmark® ** Ratio®*
April 30, 2023 e na nfa
April 20, 2022 0 fa i

* 1CE Bof4 LS Treasury Bill Index

** The Master Fund uses a cash equivalent benchmark, therelore VaR of the benchmark and Val ratioare not relevant.

The factor risk breakdown for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is presented in the table below. The riek decomposition
i based on expected anrualized volatility (1 stardard deviation). Active Risk (or Estimated Trackeng Error "TE") measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the partfolio and the benchmark using the current pasitions of each and the risk modef's factos

CONATIAnCE matrix,
Portiolie Benchmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 2023 Tatal Risk 553 0.3 535
April 30, 2022 Total Risk 540 017 530

* ICE Bolh LLS. Tremsury Bill Indes

{b} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finamcial inssrument will fluctuate due to charges in foneign exclange rates. The
risk arises on financial irstruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functicnal currency in which they are measured, A portion
of the funds” assets ane held in curmencies ather than the base currency with the resuls that the funds’ Statements of financial position can be
significantly affected by currency movements.

Mor-base currency exposures fexcluding the notional impact of forward currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below. Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary terms in a very short period of time, in the tables below, Mon-Moretary assets include
the fair value of the Master Fund's portfolic investments. Moretary assote and liabilities inchede the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
THA sale commitments and derivative contracts, Forward currency contracts are enteredinto as a method of reducing currency risk,

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2023

138/271

Assets Mon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Australian Doliar b= 5LAMETS 51824875
British Pound A 5,724 635 5,078,635
Canadian Dollar = AT IS AT 3TH
Eurn B.OED, 45 11,781,976 18,741,971
Hew fealand Dallar - 12,765 72,165
Norweglan Krone - 3G 30,804
Swedlsh Frona - 5612 9612
Swisek Frane - 112,288 112,288
$6,960,045 $19,604,300 $26,564,345

Liabsilithes. Maon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Alzstralion Dollas 5= 51,014,031 51,014 031
British Found = TABTETI TABTLATS
Canadian Dollar - BTA52 67,457
Eurg - 11,B18,E25 11,818,825
JEpanese Yen - 227,088 FITO8Y
Morwegian Kromne — 350 350
Swpdish Krona - 160,047 160,047
Swviss Franc - 1400 1,600
— 420,777,559 520,777,559

Currency Mon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Canadian Dollar - 45 55
CrechKoruna - AT 47
Eurey - qrd I
§— 5426 5426
Putrnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 20
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Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2022

ASSELS Men-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Australian Dollar 5= S1BET 508 51687908
Braziian Real - 5,148 5,148
British Found 1,956,355 L1178 3056080
Canadian Datlar - 458 A 4ER 240
Chilean Peso - 3432 3,432
Crech Haruna - 10,237 10237
Eurey 7,046,608 0,017,185 16,063,863
Japanee Yan - 425,854 445 B54
Mexican Peda - 4582 4 B2
Nimw Featand Dollar £17.023 47033
Norwegian Kione - B1A34 BILE3L
Polish Doty - 16,391 16,591
Swedish Brong — 235347 255,947
Swlgs Frane — 2124861 22561
£8,985,085 $13,564,558 422,549,644

Liatilities. Nen-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Austratian Dollas s— 5934, 542 4914542
British Pound 4233667 4,233,567
Canadian Dallar - LY a4z
Chilean Peso - 548l 528l
Crech Komnina - 25479 26479
Eurey - T.B5T, 333 TH5T,333
JEpaness Yan - 2033176 2033 176
Meslcan Paso - 3755 3,155
New Jeatand Daollar - 147 147
Morwagian Keone - J0EEa 20,6889
Folish foty - 12,305 12,308
Swedish Krona o 5319 5319
Swviss Franc - T8 121,708
= $15,836,680 515,835,680

Currency Non-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Canadian Dollas §— s 56
Crech Koruna - 43 43
Ewo - 16 16
5— 565 565

{c} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markes
interest rates, The risk arises on inancial instruments whose fairvabue or futune cash flows are affected by changes in inténest rates. Short-tanm securi-
ties are less sensitive to intenest rate changes than longer-term sacurities, but they also usually offer [cwer yields, A portion of the Master Fund's finan-
cial assets and liabilities are debt instruments with floating interest rates, which, in the Manager's opinion, are generadly bess sensithve to interest rate
changes but may decline in value if their interes: rates do nat rise as much, or as quickly as interest rates in genéral. Conversely, floating rate instru-
mentswill not generally increase in value If interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will aiso affect the amount of interest income the Master
Furd eams on its floating rate investments,

High yield securities risk

Thie Master Fund imsests in fied income securities eated Baas or lower by Moody's or BEE- ar lower by 585 (commaonky knowr as “junk” or “high
yield” bordsh, These securities are considered speculative and, while generally providing greater intome than mvestiment in bigher-rated securities,
irvohie greater risk of principal and income fincluding the possibility of default or bankmiptoy of the issuers of such securities) and may involve greater
volasdliny of price (especially during peniods of economic unoertainty or change) than securities in the kigher rating categones. Because yields vary
over time, nospecific level of income can ever be assured. These lower-rated, kigh yielding fixed income securities pererally tend ta reflect ecanomic
changes tand the outook for economic growth], shortterm corporate ard industry developments and the markes's perception of their credit quality
{especially during times of adverse publicizy) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarily o fluctuationsin the gereral level

Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 21
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of interest rates (2though these lowar rated fived income sacurities are 2lso afectad by changes in interest rates), in the past, economic down-
TS of an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused a bigher ircidence of default by the issuers of these securities ard
may fo soin the future, especially in the case of Righty leveraped issuers,

Payment risk

The issuers of debt securitics keld by the Mazter Fund may be able tocall a bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularly during
periods of declining interest rates. The Master Fund may rat be able to reinvest that principal as attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Furd, and the Master Fuetd may bose any prermiom paid, The Master Fund would Mo lose the benefit of falling intenest rates an price of the prepaid
bond. On the other hand, rising interest rates may cause prepayments to ccour at siower than expected rates. This effectively lengthens the
maturities of the affected securities, making them mare sensithve to interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value more volatile.
Securities subject to prepayrment risk generally offer less patential for gains when intenest rates decline, and may offer greater patential for loss
wien interest rabes fise.

The tabdes below present the interest rate profile of the Statements of financlal position categorized by maturizy dates.

Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2023
HNon-interest

Loss than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years bearing Tatal
Assols
Cashand cash equivalents 36,037,345 5 §- 5175570 58,202,915
Sales of invesiments awaiteng settienment - —= - 118,551,718 118,35L,Ti8
Receivaie forvadation margin on centrally
clearad swag coMracts 70,463 - - - 270463
Inerest and other recesvabiles == = — 5,094,990 5,094,950
Financral Assets at falr value through profit
Of 0358 65,680,374 41,353,560 4B AI85T9 294,206 535,151,559
Total assets §73,988,162 541,353,960 $428,824,579 5124,116,504 SHEE, 287,615
Liabilitias
Purchases af imestments awaiting settiement - b = 5284 50T 450 S284,507,450
Redemptions ol units awaiting settfemen - - - £13501 113921
Payable for variation margin an
futures contracts 62,437 - - - B2 437
Lollzteral on certaln darhvative contracts,
atvalue - 195,022 2A33.510 — 318,552
Fayabile for management fiees - - - 230,820 230830
Payable for custody and adminitrative fees - - - 174,314 174,314
Dther accrued espenses - - - 350,550 350,550
Firupneial Liakxiities at fair vale through peofit
ar inds 2365637 2795227 124,150,858 E59,59% 130,001,321
Tatal liabilities (excluding net
azsets aktributable to holders of
redeemable units) $2,418,074 52,990,249 127,004,368 $286,046,663 §418,4549,354
Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2022

Non-interest

Less than 1 year 1-5 years Owed § years bearing Tatal
Assets
Cashand cashequivalents 54579668 f— §— 536,559 545,766,207
Sales of Investmignts awaiting settiement T99, 48814 e b L
Recehviide forvasiation mangin on
futires contracts 142,259 : : 142,268
Rereivale for vasation margin oncentrally
tlzared Swap contraces 240,617 - - - 240617
Irterest and other receivables - - - 4,050,447 #050,447
Financial Assets at fair value through proft
of lss 50,198,517 549,537,847 736,558,544 2,141,170 850,436,728
Total assets 496,311,201 559,537,897 5738,558,544 4306,176,9%0 51,200,584,632

Putrnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) x2
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Liabilities

Purcharses of Inwestrients swaiing settement b= b= G 4385,831,373 §365,431,373
Redemptions of units awalting seniement - - - 1,533,148 1,533,148
{ollateral an certaln derivative contracts,

atvalue 140,456 752028 3,000 668 - 3845152
Payable for management fees. - - — T30 Tr3.027
Payable for costody and admindstrative fees . 115,066 115065
Oher accrued expentos = - = 350,553 330,553
Fimancral Liakelities an fairvalue through peofit

arings 20,373,202 23,580,243 471,331,238 2441478 468,032,203
Total labilities (fexcluding net

assets attributable to holders af

redesmable units) 20,513,750 £24,632,271 £424,339,906 £301,086,595 $B60,572,522

Mon-base interest rate exposures {eocluding the national impact of interest rate swap coniracts) are detailed in the tables sbove. Interest rate
swap contracts ame entered into as a method of reducing interest rate risk,

April 30
Interest Income 023 2022
Cashand cash equivalents 41,447 980 520,216
Dbt securities:
Mfairvalucttrﬂu@:l:uﬁturm 15220412 21,164 BEE
Tatal SAT,677,392 521,185,084

* The Master Fund had no interest income fror imvestments in affillated issuers for the periods ending April 30, 2003 and 2032,

{d} Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assaciated with financial Eabilities. The main Gability of the funds

i the redernption of any units that investors wish to sell. The Master Fund's financial instruments that include investments in OTC derisative
cortracts, if any, which are noz raded in an erganized public marker, may be llliquid. As aresulz, the Maszer Fund may not be able to promptly
liquidate scane of their investments in these instruments at ar amount close to their fairvalue in order to meet their iquidity requirements or o
respond to specific events such as deterioration in the credit worthiness of any particular issuer,

To minimize or mitigate the effect of iquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-pasition the portfolic or 2djust the
allocation te obtain a higher concentration of more liquid and viable securities as detaited in the investment objective,

Pursuant to the funds’ mestment policy, the Manageris o manitor on an ongaing basis the funds' liquidity positon. Redeemabile urits
are redeemed on demand at the holder's option, However, the Manager does not foreses that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
represertative of the actual cash outflows, as kobders of these instruments typically retain them for the medium o lorg-term,

Thee tables below analyze the funds’ assets and liabilioes into relevast maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the Statements of
firancial position date o the contracival matunity date, The amournisin the tables are the contractyal undiscourted cash flowars,

Liquidity Risk April 30, 2023
Greater than

Less than § Manth 1-3Months 3 Menths Tatal
Total Assets 5184,5945,059 54,168,061 5479,134,505 $E6H,I8T,E25
Liabilithes
Purchases of imestrments awaiting settiement 2E4.507,454 - - 184 507459
Redermprions of units avwaiting sentbement 113921 - = 113,521
Payable for varlation mangin on Ritures contracts B2437 - - B2 43T
Collageral on cerbain dearvilive contracts, stvalue - - 3,008,532 3,008,532
Payable lor management fees 230,420 - - 23082
Payable for custody and administrative lees 172,304 - - 174,314
Other acerusd sxpenses 350,550 - - 350,550
Financzal Liabilities an fairvatug through profitor loss 237,081 LOET93E 176,706,304 130,001,321
Total Liabilities §285,666,552 $1,067,936 5131,724,836 $415,459,354

Futnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) %
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Liguidity Risk April 30, 2022
Greater than

Less than 1 Month 1-3Months 3 Months Tatal
Tatal Assets §243,838 686 148,141,143 S808,E04,E03 §1,200,584,632
Liabilities
Purchases of imestmants fwaiting setiement 187,500,581 198,330,792 - 385,831,373
Redemptions of units awaiting settlement 1,533,148 - - 1533148
Collateral on certain dierivative contracts, atvalug - 3,855,152 3895152
Payabie for management fees, TI3.087 - - 173,007
Fayabie for custody and administrative fees 115,066 - - 115,066
Oieher acerusd S nges 97,553 - - 302,553
Fisancial Liakdlinies at fair value through profitor loss L AST 427 824162 255,333,152 AGENER 203
Total Liabilities 5194,771,4802 5106,572,416 5459,128,304 S860,572,522

{e) Credit risk

The furds will be exposed to a credit risk o parties with whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settement default, The risk of defauls on
securities traded is considered minimal as delivery of securities sold is only made when the broker has received payment. #ayment is made an
a purchase when the securities heve been received by the broker. The trade will fail if elther party fails to meet its obligation.

The furds seek mmitigate theircredit risk by undertaking trarsactions with broker deaters, banks and regulated excharges which the Manager
corsiders of high credit ratings ard that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, if any, imsalve the possibility
that the counterparty to the contract may default on its chligation to perform.

The fairvalue of collazeral that has been accepred by the Master Fund related to outstanding repurchase agreements is: $50,856,275
(20022 527 435 861,

The Master Fund gererally imvests in financial assets which kave a creditrating assigned by well-krown rating agencies,

Percentage of Met Assets
April 10

Rating 2023 2022
AA I 15795 25.53%
L] 072 OTE
A D&t 138
BEEEAS [35] 7R
BH/Ea a0 16,20
BB 752 1178
OOC/Caa and below &7 [
Unrated” 1485 1212
Cash and net other asses A3 ET.62

100.00 10000

* In order ta monitar the credit quality of the *Unrated ™ unde fying debt securities, the Manages, on the bas's of the [nternal research, prepares its own ratings for
the vasious instruments for which publicty avallable credit ratings are not avallable, The Manager rewiews the key financial metrics of the issue and structural
feanures of the instrormients inonder to calculate the implied ratings for each of these inttrumams.

Credit quatities are shown 25 a percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2023 and 2022, A bond rated 838 or kigher (A-3 or
Figher, far short-term debt) is considered investment grade. This chart reflects the highest security rating provided by one or more of Standard

& Poor's, Moody's, ard Fitch, Ratings and partfolia credis quality will vary owver time. Cask arnd ret other assets, if any, represent the market value
weights of cash, dedivatives, and short-term securities in the portfolio. Datain the chart reflects a new caloulation methodology put inta effect on
Jure 30, 2002,

The funds themsetves have not beer rated by an independent rating agency.
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The credit crisis could Fave an impact on the Master Furd's remaining securities if other counterpariies are forced to file for bankrupzcy or are
atherwise urable to perform their obligations. The funds are expesed to credit risk, whick is the risk that a counterparty will be urable to pay
amaourts in full when they fall due.

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
ard cther receivable balarces. The funds’ macimom risk of loss from courterparty nsk, either as the protection selieror as the profection buyer,
is the fair value of the derivative contracts, This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master netting amangemen: between the Master
Fund and the counterparty. Where the Master Fund is a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of futere payments the Master Fund
may be required to make is equal o the notional amownt of the relevant derivative contract.

The Master Fund is a party to 1504 {nternational Swaps and Derivatives Association, inc) Master Agreements that povern O7C derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions imobing morigage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreemerts) with certain counterparties entered into from time o tme,
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties' gereral obfigations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and earty termdnation. With respect o certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account h:.l the funds’ custadian, The Master Fund's collateralis
delivered to the counterparty by either pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty;, Collateral can be in the form of cash or deb: secu-
rities issued by the LS. Government or related agencies ar other securities as agreed to by the Master Fund ard the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requiremnents are determined based on the Master Fund's net position with each courterparty. With respect to iS04 Master Agreements,
ermination events applicable to the Master Fund may accur upon a decline i the Master Fund's net assets below a specified threshald over a
certain pericd of time, Termination events applicable to counterparties may cotur upan adeclinein the counterparty’s long-term or short-term
credit ratings below a specified level, in each case, upon ocourrence, the other party may elect 1o terminate early and cause settlement of all
derivative ard foreign exchange contracts cutstanding, including the payment of amy losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determired by the terménating party. Any decision by one or more of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early termination could
innpact the Master Fued's future derivative activity.

At the close of the reporting pericod, the Master Fund had a ret liability positon of 52,355,514 (A022: §24,530,796) on oper derivative comtracts
subject io the Master Agreements. Collateral posted by the Master Fund at pericd end for these agreements totaled 52 168676 (022 524,118 878)
and may include amounts related o unsettled agreements,

Thie Master Fund's main oredit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 109 of the fair
value of favorable contracts cutstanding are with a single issuer, with the exception of Uniform Maortgage-Backed Securities, which were valued
at5258,910,431 ora9.35% of fair value at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2023 (2022 Uriform Mortgage-2acked Securities, which were
valued at $487 130,931 ar 56.70% of fair value),

The funds are exposed to credit rick associated with the Custodian wha holds a porticn of the funds’ inancial assets and U5, cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations far the Master Fund’s imvestment transactions, The Custodian also provides some of the
shor-torm bending facilities o the Master Fund. The funds were alse exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custedian
kas failed to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds.

The maximam exposure to credit fisk as of the reporting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting pericd:

April 30

Instrument Type 2023 022
Firvangial assets and [Fatifties ot fair value theough profit or Toss comprised of:

Fimisel incorme irmestmants S4B, B0ETA0 5T12.608,206
Repurchase agreements. 49,855,000 21253000
Dehvative assats” 12,158,269 48 476,133
Cashand cash equivalents B 212915 &5, 7R85, 227
Sales of Imestments Swaiing seisment 118,551,718 200048814
Interestand other receivables 5,004 550 4 050,447
Reczhvable forvasiation mangin on futunes contracts - 142,294
Recahainbe farvasation marginon centrally elesred swap contr sats FTD463 HMOET

* Derivative assens are comprised of larvwand contraces, OTC swap eontracts, farwand prermium swap apling contracns, punchased oations, purchasad swap
options, weitten options, and written swap options. The maximum credit rish onowrithen options and weitteén swap options s evaluated on a security basis, based
& the value of premiumis paid on each security. The masimum credit risk on certaln derivative asseéts s mitgated as 2 result of the Master Fund's enforceabie

master netting areangement (Hotes 8 and 12],
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The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and boss given dedault.
Maragement considers both bisterical analysis ard farward leaking information in determining any expected credit loss. At April 30, 2003 and
April 20, 2002, all other receivables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits are held with courterparties with a credis rating of
Adfha or higher and are due 1o be settled within 1 week, Maragement considers the probability of defaglt to be close to 2ere as the counterpar-
ties have a strong capacity tomeet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a resullt, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
12-manth expected credit losses a5 any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Ffund,

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit ratimg issued by Moody's atyear end of Aa3 (2002: Aa3), On February 38, 70022 145 Markit Ltd
merged with S&P Glabal Inc. 557 Global inc. had a credit rating issued by Moody's at year end of A3 (2002 A3}

Senior loans are purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayed delvery basis and may be settled a month or more after the trade date, which
from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash batarces; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities.
Senicricars car be accuired through an agent, by assigrment from another kolder of the loan, or a2 a participation interest in another holder’s
portion of the loan. When the Maszer Fund investsin a loan or participation, the funds are subject o the risk that an intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the borrower will fadl to meet its obligations to the Master Furd, in addition to the risk that the bosrower under the
loan may default on its obligaticns,

Purzuant to the funds’ imvestment policy, the Manager is to monitor on an ongoing basss the funds’ credis position.

{f} Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ various investment techniques and instruments for imnestment purpases or for efficient portfolia managerment of
their assets for hedging against market mevernents, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otherwise, Any such instruments are used under
the conditions and within: the limits laid down by the Marager. The Master Fund utilized forwands, futures, options and swap contracts during the
reporting period, and amy resulting gains or losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive ircome {loss).

(g} Fair valuation estimation

Thecarnying value less impalrsent provision of ather receivables and payables are assumed to approsimate their fairvalues. The fairvalue of
finanrcial liabdlities for disclasure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the currert market interest rate that is
avadlabde 1o the Master Furd for simélar financial imstruments,

Amendment to IFRS T “Financis! instruments: Disclosare " requines the Master Fund o classify fairvalue measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used im making the measurements.

= Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabifities (Level £}

»  Irputsother thar quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
{that is, derived from prices) (Level 2}

+  Inputs fior the asset or liahility that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3.

The levelir the fair value higrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurement in its entirety, For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. (f a fairvalue measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inpnts, that measuremaent is.a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a parscularinput to the fair value measerement i its entirely
reduires udament, considening factors specific to the assot of liability.

The determination of what canstituzes “abservable® requires sigrificant judgment by the funds. The funds corsider abzervable daza w be that
marker data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, neliable and verifiable, nat proprictary, and provided by indeperdent
saunces that aneactively imvoheed in the relevant marker

rvestrments whose values are based on quated market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Lewel 1 include active listed equi-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, U5, government reasury bills and certain ror-L1.5, sovereign chligasions. The Master Furd does mot adjust the
quoted price for these instruments.

Finarcial instruments that tracke i markers that ane rot conidercd to be active but arevalued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations
oralterrative pricing sources supported by observable inputs ane dlassified witkin Level 2. These include investment-grade corporate bands and
certain non-LLS. sovereign obligations, listed equities and O7C dervatives, &5 Level 2 investmenis include positions that are rot traded in active
markets andfor are subiect to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andor non-transferability, which are generally
based on available market informaticon,

For financial instruments for which there is no active marke?, the Master Fund may use imternally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techmiques pererally recognized as standard withir the industry. tnputs for assets and liabadities that are not based an
abservahle market data are classified within Level 3,
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The following table analyzes the fairvalue bierarchy of the Master Fund's finzncial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting periad Apeil 30, 2023,

Fair Value - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Investment in securities:
Fineel Income:
Asset-backed securities - 52,155,583 5— 52,155,583
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at valws 1,615,000 1,403,532 - 3018,537
Coawertible bonds and notes
Basic materials = R3TE9 - 63,749
Captal goods - 506613 - 26612
Communication servoes - 540,380 - 540,380
Consurmer cyclicals = 3033947 — 3,035,547
Cotvsurnir staplies - LEIEATT - LRIEATT
BI'E’T“E]' - 650,375 = 650,375
Fanancials — 114,74 - 114,84
Hexthcane - 2,362,363 - 7,362,363
Teennalogy = 4,532,588 - 4,532,588
Transportation - 399,657 - 399,857
Uhilities amd poweer = 343614 = 3614
Corporate bonds and notes
Basic materials = 3418316 e 3414316
Capital goods - 5854,111 - 5654111
Communication senvioes - 1,406,202 - 1,406,200
Consemir Cyclicsis - 10,355,527 - 10,355,622
Consumir staples - 1,753,537 - 1TREEIT
Energy = 10,391,700 - 10,391,700
Financials - 1,572,496 - 1,572,486
Heaith cang - 3 2E8,517 - ZIRESTT
Technalogy = 1925871 = 1925871
Litilities and power - 105,307 — LOGG.307
Foreign government and agency bonds and notes. - Hada90t - 444921
Martgape-backed secudities
Agency collateralised mortgage obligations - 36,698,790 - 36,698,790
Commencial morigage-backed secudties - FaA-TERL ] - FifTENL
Residential mortgage-badked securities - 26,201,638 - 76,791 B35
Senior foans
Barslc ranterinls - 482125 - AR T25
LCapital goods - RaT6EE - LEN
Communication services - 32296 - 342,746
Conmsurmar q'cli:ais. = 1,171,783 = 1,171,183
Comnsurmer staples - 635,104 - 538,104
Ereigy - 4BR527 - AB8, 537
Heaith case - 105,735 - 105,735
Technalogy - T38.405 — T38,405
Fharerm investments - 63,091,138 - 63,090,138
L5, governmeent and agency mortgage obligations - JA0A1T 40 - JA0ALTESD
Tetal investmant in securities 1,615,000 517,850,740 - 519,465,740
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Derivatives:

Farward contracts - $294,236 §— 5294, 226
Farward premium awap oglion contracts - 7655, 5486 = 7/595, 585
OTC Creclit defauit contracts - 8,700,987 - 8,700,587
Total derlvatives - 16,691,799 - 16,691,799
Total Financial assets at falr value through profit or less 4536,157,539
Fair Valus - Financial assets Lowel 1 Level 2 Leval 2 Total
Lashequivalents G- SEO3T.345 5— 56,037,345
Centraly cheared intarast rane Swap comraaes - 54,508 TR - 54,508,780
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total
Derivatives:

Foeward comracts 5— bl ] 5— G059, 599
Fexward peemium swap option contracts - 6,631,79% - 5,631,799
OTC Total return S contiacts - 315,519 - 315,519
OTC Credit defacit contracts = 8033091 = 9,033,081
Tetal derivatives = 16,649,508 - 16,649,508
THA sale commitmants - 113,355,813 - 113351813
Tatal Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss £130,001,321
Fair Value - Financial lEabilities Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Centrathy cheared interest fate swap coMracts = S49,940015 = 545940015
Futures contracts B59.508 - - 59,598

All ether assers and labilines rot measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classified a5 Level 2. Befer o the Statements of
firancial pesition for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the waluation techniques.

The fellewing table analyses the fairvabue bierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and abilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the
reporting period April 30, 2002,

Fair Value - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Investrment in securities:
Fixed Income:
Asset-backed securities L 51,220,340 i— 51,220,340
Cotiateral on cerfain derivative contracts, at valee 2160000 1735152 - 3595158
Convertibie bonds and notes
Capital gmds - 243,060 = 243,064
Communication services = LDESETS - LOBAETS
Consumr cyclicals = 2,381,548 = 2,391,545
Consumer staples - 1,495,172 - 1,495,172
Energy - 821,315 - 21,315
Financials - 0o - F160320
Heaithcare = 2132012 - 213202
Technalogy = 514,262 = 51400062
Transportation - 561,150 - 581,150
Litilities amd peiwer - 350,480 - E5B.480
Corporate bonds and notes
Basic materials - A TTHSE5 - 4.TT8,985
Capital goods - 3,005,839 - 3,025,834
Commuication Sservares - 5B5H G - 5,B5EHED
Consumer cyclicats - 12,999,060 - 12,595,060
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Consurmerstaples i 4,705,599 i 54,105,900
Enr gy - 15372737 - 15,372,737
Financlals - 7,287,661 - 7,267 hEL
Healthcans - 4,557,357 - 4557357
Technology — 2,043,115 — A043115
Transpartation - B57,680 - BSTERD
Utilities and power - LOT2 442 - VAT A4d
Forelgn government and agency bonds and nates. - 31861483 - 31,481 483
Morgage-backed securities
Agensy collaterabized mongage oatigations = 84,542,510 - 84,542,511
Commurcial mortgage-backed securities - 34,353,329 - 34,353,329
Residential mortgage- backed securities - 41786050 - 42786050
Purchased swap aptions outstanding - 8,510,569 - E.510,569
Senior loang
Basc materials = A5571 e S59TH
Capital goods - 511616 - 511,616
Commiuclic o Serioes - 5,000 - 215,000
Consumar cyclicals = 1,585,470 = L5B5.470
Consumer staples - 536072 - 536,072
trlerEf - 317,188 - JITI8E
Financials - B2 501 - 82,601
Heaith carg - 1,117,330 - L117.330
Techwag_y = 7417 = TivaT
Transpartation - 357218 - 357,211
Ehort-term Imsestments - 35,540,533 - 35,540,533
LLS. gewernsment and sgency mortgage obligations - 4R 009056 - 4R399 056
Total imvestrnent in securities 2,160,000 BOG,252,775 - 808,412,775
Derivatives:
Fartward contracts 5= 52,141,170 5= £2,141,170
Forward premium Swap aption contracts - Fa80T 347 = 29507347
OTE Credit defautt contraces - 9954936 - 9,954, 936
Total derivatives = 42,023 453 = 42,023,451
Total Financial as4ets at fair value through prafit ar loss $850,436,228
Fair Value - Financial assets Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatkal
Cash equivalents 5 545,740,668 5— G576 668
Centrally cheared interest rate swap comracts - 31,748,282 - 31748782
Futunes contracts 2915323 - - 14915323
Falr value - Financial llabiitles Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Derivatives:
Forward coatfacts &= L2441 A28 - §2.441 478
Forward premium swap option contracts - 33472455 - A34TF 455
OTC Total raturn swap contracts - 251,036 - 251038
OTC Credit default contracts - 17879539 - 17,879,535
Total derivatives - 54,044,502 - 54,044,502
THA sale commitrments - 396,837,078 - 355, BITOTR
Wiriteen swap options outstanding - 17,150,623 - 17150623
Tatal Financial liabilities at fair value through profiter loss 548,032,203
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Fair Value - Financial liabilities Lewel 1 Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Contraly cheared intarest rae SWap conracts = 527,317,934 4— 522317934

All other assets and Habdites not measured at fair value but for which fairvalue is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer o the Statements of
firancial position for a breakdown of asses ard liabilitics and 1o Maotes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techriques.

Financial Assets at fairvalue through profic or loss:

April 30
2023 22
Financial assets held For trading:
Cashequivaients SB03T, 345 545,709,668
Dbt SEcurities 453,356,070 TEDABE, 5T
Répurchase agrésments 49,859 000 JT 3,000
LS. reasary bills, cartificates of daposit and commercial paper
(222 L5, treasury Bilis and commercial paper) 13,232,138 B,247,533
Defividtives 16,691,799 B3
Collateral on certain derivative contracts 3,018,532 3,895,152
Tatal finamcial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss [incleding cash equivalents) 4544,194,884 4806, 165,896
April 30
023 Mz
Qieher et changes in fir vaiue on fingnciat assers a1 fairvalwe theough prolit of [oss:
Riealized ST, 738,728} /76,381 075)
Change in unrealized 14, T40,RED 78,261,738
Tatal gains/ilosses) 5[22,498,009) G148, 129,297)

{h} Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to halders of redeemable urits. The amount of net assets attributable ta
rolders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject 1o daily subscriptions and redemptions at the
discretion of unitholders, The furds' chjective when maraging capital is to safeguard the funds’ abilizy 1o continue as a going concern in arder
o provide returns for unitholders and maintain 2 capital bage to support the development of the investment activitios of the Master Fund. The
Marager, at I35 discrethon, may scale down a sigrificant redemption thatit deems would materially prejuchce the management of the fundsin
aceordarce with its investment objectives,

n erder to maintaie or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies are ta perform the fellowing:

»  Monitar the level of daily subscripsions and redemptions relative o the assets it expects to be able to iquidate within a day and adjust the
amount of distribu tiors {if any) the funds pay wo redeemable unitholdars.

«  Redeern and fssue new unics in accordance with the comstiutional documents of the funds, whick include the abiliny 1o restrict redemptions
and require certain minirmum boldirgs and subscrptions.

The Manager menitors capital an the basis of the value of net asets attributable to redeemable unithalders.

5. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual fee of up to 2.00% for Class S Units and 0,60% for Class | Units payvable out
of the assets of the Master Fund, For the fscalwear, at the discretion of the Manager, the ranagement fee was not assessed to Class S Urits
associated with the Master Fund. The Manaper will receive an annual fee of up fo L60% for Class | Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Furd, per annum on the average monthly met assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund.
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Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributoss, Ltd. (the Distributor), an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manager and
the Distributor out of the Manager's fee, The Distributor may share its fees with other parties such as ather sub=distibuzors in such manner ard to
supch extent as it sees fit from time 1o time, A the end of the reporting period, the Marager paid the Distributor 52,576,425 (2022: 53,657,350).

tis currenty expectod that the total experse ratio (oxcluding ameortized organizational expense) for Class J Units will ros exceed 1.80% and
Class M Units will not exceed 1,20% per annum of the average manthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund, As of April 30, 2023, the Manager reim-
Buirsed the furds 5258 433 (2022 572_533) for epenses that excecded the tatal expense ratio above, TRe Manager ieserves the right to madily
this total experse ratio at amy time.

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, FirstCanbbean international Bank and Trust Compary (Cayman Limited {the Master Fund Trustee) is enti-
tled to be paid out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up to $22_ 500 per anrum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased
fior various reasoss such as inflation without Uritholder consent as long as the fees are still considened 1o be at nermal commencial rates,

Sueh feeswill accrue dadly and be paid guartedly sm arrears, The Master Fund Trustee shall be resmbursed for all reasorable cut-of-pocket
expenses inourred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Furnd's assets.

Purcuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, MaplesFS Limited ithe Feeder Furd Trustes] is entitled to be paid cut of the aseets of the Feeder Fund a
feeof up o (.02% per annum on the average daily Net AssetValue of the Feeder Fund up o 560,000 per annum and subject o a 515,000 ménimumy
peryear. Such fees will acerue daily and be paid quarterty ie arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable aut-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation tothe Feeder Fund cat of the Feeder Fund's assers,

{b} Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay o State Street Bank and Trust Compary (the Custodiar), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up 1o 0,109 per
arnum on the average manthly Met Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daity and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall also pay to

the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Furd a fee of up 1o 0, 10% per annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund
acerucd daily and paid monttly is arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-al-pocke: expenses payable to the Custodiam cut of gach
furd's assets,

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian bas appointed State Street Cayman Trust Comgany, Lid. (3tate Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in relation to the funds, For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to 567,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. additional
manthly per queote pricing fees will apply. This fee will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-af-
pocke? expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent cut of the Master Furd's assets, The Manaper shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Agert out
of the assets of the Feeder Fund ar admiristrative fee of approximately 55,000 per anrurm plus mantbly perquate pricieg fees. This fee isincluded
with the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehersive income {loss), and will accrue daily and be paid manthly in arrears. The Manager shall
discharge reasorable out-of-pocke? cxpenses payatde to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Feeder Fund's assets,

The funds may enter into expense offset arranpements with State Street wheneby State Street's fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances, For the years ended April 30, 2023 and April 30, 2022, the funds’ expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arrangements.

Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Eurepe ple (the Transfer Agent), cul of the assetsof the funds, a fee based on the valume of transfer agent activity,
subject o a 300,000 minimum per annum on the Master Fund and a $75,000 mirimum per annum on the Feeder Fund, accrued daily and paid
manthly in arrears, The Marager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pockes expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assets,

Other Expenses

n addition, each respective fund bears all other expenses incidental toits operations and busiress, including, amongst athers all compliance
cos1s and the fees of s auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; Interest and commitment fees on loans and debt balanmces; any income,
withholding or other taxes; cost of communication with Urithalders and prospective ines iors,

£ach furd may be recuired te pay subscription and redemption charges in connection with investments in other imvestment comparies. Each
furd may be required o pay brokerage commissions in relation to portiolio ransactions,
10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

The Manager voluntarily reimbursed the Master Fund 5138 (2002 §11%,854) for trading emors which occurred during the reporting period, The
reimbursement by the Manaper of suech amounts had ro materisl impact on ot retuen.,
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11. MARKET COMNDITIONS

n the rormal course of business, the Master Fund ades. finarcial inszruments and enters into financial transactions where risk of potential loss
ewrsts due to changes in the market {market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the transac hon o perform feredit risk), The Master Fund may
be exposed wo additional credis risk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Furd has unsettled or open transactions will default as
discussed in previous notes,

On Juby 27, 2007, the United Kingdom's financial Corduct Authority {"FCAT, which regulates LIBOR, announced its intention (o cease compelling
banks to provide the quetations needed 1o sustain LIBOR after 2021, ICE Banchmark Administration, the administrater of LIBOR, ceased publication
of mast LIB0R settings on a representative basis at the end of 2071 and is expected to cease publication of a majority of U.5. dollar L IBOR settings
on a representative basis after June 30, 2023, Inaddition, global regulators have announced that, with limited exceptions, no new LIBOR-based
contracts should be entered into after 2021.LIBOR has historically been 2 commaon benchmark interest rate index used to make adjustments tovari-
able-rate loans, it Is vsed throughout global banking and financial industries o determine interest rates for avariery of fimancial instruments and
borrowing arrangements. Actions by regulatars have resulted in the establishment of alternative reference rates to LIBOR in mest major cumencies.
Variaus firancial industry groups have been plarning for the transition away fram IBOR, but there are obstacles to converting certain longer-term
socurities and ransactions to rew reference rates, Markets are developieg slowly and questions sround liquedity in these rates and how 1o appro-
priately adjust these rates to mitigate any econcmic value transfer at the time of transition remain a significant concern, Neither the effect of the
transition process nor its ultmate success can yvet be krown, The trarsition process might lead o increased volatiling and iliguidity i markens that
rety on LIBOR to determine interest rates. Itcould also lead to a reduction in the value of some LIBOR-based investments and reduce the effective-
ressof related wansactions, such as hedges, While some LIBOR-based Instruments may contemplate a scenario where LIBOR is no longer avallable
by prowiding for an alternative rate-setting methedology, not all may bave such provisions and there may be sigrificant uncertainty regarding the
effectiveness of amy such alternative methodologies. Since the usefulness of LIBOR as a benchmark could deteriorate during the transition period,
these effects coubd ocour at any time.
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The foltowing tables summarize any derivatives, repunchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end of the reparting
periods, that are subject o an enforceable rnaster netting agreement or simdar agreement, For secunities lending transactions of bomowing
wransactions associated with securities sald shart, if ary, see Mote 3. For financial regorting purpases, the Master Fund does not offset firancial
assets and firancial llabiities that are subject to the masternetting agreements in the Statements of financial position,

i
i §§§ 5z

5
April 30,2023 . z 3
Centrally cleared intevest rate swap contraces . f— . f— . SeTI540T 5—

 Barclays Bank PLC

Asoets:

OTC Total return swap contracts™

QT Credi default contracts - proection sold™ | - - - -
GTE Credit default contracts - protection purchased™ | — — - -
Futures confractst . — - — -
H:‘H'-k.‘."l'd:u."’1'!ﬁf§|"r:l'|!='ir.t5.' | w3 | Ha | — -
I-::;merﬂ:-rcm UF'IF-'\IEI:PIJ:It'::}'I-EDI'iT"iIE[i' . 2539074 . 11..‘ .

S — | — | = | = £5,850,000
Total Assets | $2,638,567 524013 55715427 549,859,000
Liabilities: ' ' '

Centrally cleaned interest rate swag contracts! — - 5. 444,954 —
are ‘-'et..a-: rEturn swap contr z:'.ts.'.’ | g | = . -
o fn.'d'rl:lu:da-.i.it-w'llra-cts probection sold* | 540,553 I .

OTC Cragir defaul contraets - protaetion surchased | [

Futures conracts®

Forward curmency contracts” 8,195 I

Farward premine Swa opton contracts” l :-;,-El-]‘g,[di [ BETS . = -
Total Liabilities | s3,018,397 $9.675  $5,444,964 §—
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets | 5521, I 514,338 4270483 545,859,000
Total eallatersl received [pledged)™'t [ ssname | o | 640,850,000
Netamount | $— 514338 Sa70.463 §—
Controted fnanciol instaaments receled (including TEA commitments)™* | Si.261430 . 5 . 5 ¥

Comtroied cosh coifatgra! receid (ncluding TEA commitrnonial™™ ] [ 5 ‘-:s &

Im'nn!m'.-'rd'rn'hrrr.:-?\.'r{vrm . 1 . 5 & 50855 TS
Collareral dlecged) fneluding TEA cameitments™ | 5 | | 5= | =

* Exeludes peemiums, i any. Incledad in Financial assets and/or Financizl fabilities an fai value through profine: loss on the Staements affinancia) position,
** included In Financial assets and/or Finandal llabilites at falr value throwgh profitor loss onthe Statements of fnandal position,
§ Additional eollacer sl may be requited from certain brokers based onindividusl sgreements,
* Comaiviod By masts netting agreement (Nate B),
= Any creer-codlateralization of total Faancial and derivative net assets is not shown Collateral may include ameounts related o wnsettied agreements,
Vinieludes eusrent dinys variation mangin only a8 reported on the Statements of financial position, which & not collateralized. Colaters pledged fas inial
rmargin on futures contracts, which ks not Included inthe table above, amounted to $840,793,
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Citibank, N.A.

&7

L6004

41,615,001

1837355

$1,837,407
§(222,316)
S[213,270)
$(9,046)

Citigroup Glabal
Markets, Inc.

2,202 817

52,200,817

34655,841

43,656,841
5(1,454,024)
501,429,547)

$[24,477)

Credit Suisse
International

LA486,510

41,486,510

1,135,917

41,186,917
4299,503
5250,000

$48,593
5
$250,000
%
5

Deutsche Bank AG

2990

519,504

355315
535,538
4(5,612)
Gee
5(5,612)
£

ae | A |

Goldman Sachs

i)

645,358

87207

79015

5812780

BOT, 250

16178
43,050
£707,218
£105,562
§=
£105,562
S =

| A | A
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HSBC Bank
USA, National
JPMorgan Chase
Bank NLA.

3 3
10,359 162
1B4DETS
§10,359 £1,844,303
3463 10,140
1,894 231
£3,48% $1,904,371
46,576 $160,068)
5 B
46,876 $[60,068)
¥ 5
5 5
5 %
5 5

Putrnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Caymar)

JPMorgan
Securithes LLC

51,812.014

1,317,486

52 4T

$1,379,933

5433081

5433081
§m
]

S5T0,000

s

34
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Merrill Lynch
Morgan
Stanley & Co.
HatWest
Markets PLC
State Streat Bank
and Trust Co.
o
Bank
UBS AG
‘WestPac Banking
Corp.

Tatal

4 & 4 5 5 § 3 LETI542T
304,558 Q30,657 T.380,354
43533 75,072 35083 LA5! 5077 e S, 2}

20,356 3336 1474004 7645585

$300,958 $994,567 G 475,072 433,299 §1,475,895 5,977 $70,944,593

315519 315,50

54,545 BITTIE 2 7711 858

B2 43T

94,121 200,066 195,122 a9 140, T8 266 569,599
40, B0 5247 GES,T0G BRI

454,545 41,287,365 £300,066 £195,122 £5 056 $E06,414 $566 420,815,376
$246,413 £(293,378) ${200,068]  $[120,050) 433,442 $669,481 55,411 450,109,317
4246,413 4(293,378) 5120,548) 4(110,678) G $669,481 §mn

5= §= $(79,417) | 5(9,372) 533,442 = [ 45,411

Flazinz 5 § % % 4 $- 41,403,552
5115000 % 5 5 5 SRED,000 5 51,615,000
& 5 §- 5 5 5 5 550,856,275
5 §292530) | {120,645 (210,678] 5 5 3 $2,168,676)

Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 35
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N.A.

Bank of Amerlca
; Bank PLC
Capital,

 April30,2022 i § iig i

Assets:

Centrally cleaned ilerest fate swap confracis' . - . b— | LB ITLGGT [ h— [ f—
'C.‘:{ 1!;;iairr’l:-.:rn SNap n.‘:cﬁl!r.r.'rs":' | | I | |

QTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ . — | — | — — | ~
{;'-CCred':dela-.:i:mwécts-p.fn‘ne:linnnrr_has.ed" [ ] - — — -
Futures contracts’ . . - . - | — [ — [ -
P»:;-wa;&:’.;r-remq.:cw.‘actsf | 13,44 . IB852 [ =] = 134,109
m:{ve:’d;.:-mmJ.;'rns-.';anl:-{:nt?.:'t-::mt'acti' | I.u?e-.ée-s . — ~ | = ?.-4549.3;&5
Purchased swap options” ™ . 18,054 . - = - -
Repurchase agreements’” . =z — | — 1,293,000 [ -
Total Assets | S8007796 $18,951  SBTLSET 52,093,000 §7,973,154
Liabilities: ' ' ' '
Cﬂ-'ut'a:::..r:.!.eared niefest rate swap contracts® . = i 531,350 [ = -
G'C‘-o!-a!.*eﬂ:urnéwapcmtra:ts" | = — | - | = -
OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ 526,447 - - - -
GTC Cred default contracis - protection purchased™ . = = — | -

Futures confracts® . = | - - | E
I-!':-"w.'t.rclrL.l'rﬁr\l-::z:l'llr.'.-.‘rt." | 1.438 | 164 05 ] | | 5281
. 'I-':-:wa'&:lremuﬁsmanﬂt'ﬂ'}:alﬂ'a:ti" . 9550,726 . | = =] 12,235,526
Written swap opbians ' 799438 | - | | | ze1Laos
Rewirs repunchase JEresmints [ - | - - [ - -
Total Liabilities | $1097B,084  $104,09 57,931,350 $— 515,853,212
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets | Si2,970,248 | §i85,144 SMO6IT  $27.093,000 §(7,860,058
Total collateral received (pledged) ™t | si2,a70,248 - §-  §27,293,000  S(T677.458
. Netamount - ' $—  sies)es  $240617  §—  $[202,560
Comm'.'ﬂdf.'ﬂaﬂa:-al-'ns!rl.'menrsrm'e-'l.ed.'tl:crl.wd.‘ﬂgfb'»lmmni-'rwnrsr*'. 5 | 5— | | 5— | S—
Comtrpbed cosh cofaters! raceived Including TBA commitrments!™* 5= | = | $= | G | 5
Lincormtroted coiateral recefved & ES S I SITH36.86L 5
Collateral (edged) finchiding TEA commitments)*™ [ emomeee | 5= | S— | sp9EmmEl | STATIASE

* Excludes promiums, dany, Incleded in Finencial assetsandfor Finamcial Rabilivies at i value I|'II¢I-E"I- |‘1|1’§-|i|! o % on the Statements af financizl positon
* included in Financial assets and/or Financal llabilites at fair value throwegh profit or loss onthe Statements of finandal position,
1 Additional coEater ¥ oy b requensd fram cortain brokoprs based on individual Ty
* Covered by master netting agreement (Note B,
= Arny ever-codlateralizati on of motal Fazncial and decdvative net assens is not shown Collatesal may includs amaunts retated 1o uasemtied agreements,
*Includes curnent dany™s varlation rn.:lrf,'n andy ¥ reporied on the Staterments of inancial position, which i fot collateraliped, Colateral pledged o il margin
on fstuses contracts and centrally cleaved swap contracts, which & not Inclded inthe table abave, amounted to 5849810 and 53,104,495, respectively.
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Citigroup Glabal
Markats, Inc.

$1,380,069

4 15671

$4,325,571
$|2,945 602
2,945 602

s,_

W e

Credit Sulsse

1617,IT6

51,617,276

1917623

43,020,615

$(2,311,359
2,311,359

i

Deutsche Bank AG

6613

624,623

419757

£419,757
§204,866
$204,866
|-

§
S2E0,000

Goldman Sachs

N
2,096,341

E56,255

53,851,624

2954318

2,BE3E39

544,305

56,558,598
§(2,707,374

512,675,508
$131,466

HSBC Bank
USA, National

43,549

523,549

§m
$23,549

L=
§23,540

&

[
%

£
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Murrill Lynch

54
$ 3 E
LI6TA04 244182
142,755
42073
2358 15T
1,767,537
54,771,767 52,109,703 5244,782
1577.342 426,730
& 45T
3,365,012
4212 845
57,642,112 $1,677,342 $426,232
512,870,545 5432,361 §1181,450)
2,790,999 F300,000 $181,450)
579,545 £132,361 §—
¥ 5 E
i £300,000 4
$ 5 £
52,790 399 5[349,656 235,909
Putram Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) ar



Morgan
Stanbey & Co.

142,168

63,805
466,923

2,303,801

54,078,817

251,035

1425947

8,070
T12040
3,228 280

45,625,423
(1,546,606
51,375,667

$17,939

457,356

1.938 388

52,405,744

13,300

3367403

$3,400,703
£[994,959
5861714
£[133,245

i um | am s

State Strect Bank
and Trust Co.

SHTATI

5967473

193,217
5774,256
§774,256
3_
LET 484
§
§
9

nign

116,123

1,232 685

£1,348 807

562998
451,831

361.3m3

41,386,258
$(37,451
537,451

s_
&
5

4w

S13 97s

A

38055
4,566,357
1,626,533

56,430,955

54,804,732

51,626,222

$1,500,000

5126,232
[

S1.500,000
&
k.

156/271
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‘WestPac Banking
Corp.

i Tatal

§ £ 54,371 96T

1328822

142,299

1 A 1 143 170

2,153,767 29,977 34]

8,510,569

JTF3.000

§2,153,767 541,443 583,515,274

1931350

= 251,035

15,353,525

B 2,441,428

1,741,877 33 477,500

1,150,623

51,243,872 5606 §76,500,461

5909,895 540,843 57,014,813
$909,895 §—
§= 40,843

LE41ERE 5 51,735,152

50,000 3 52,160,000

4 & 437E3E AG]

3 & SaT62 612

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Caymar) 3B
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13. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial szatements were approved by the Trustees on August 2, 2023,

14. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There were no signiticant pest-Statements of financial position events through August 2, 3023,

15, SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On May 31, 2023, Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin Besources™) and Great-West Lifeca Inc,, the parent compary of Putmam ULS. Hobdirgs |, LLC
{“Putnam Holdings™}, announced that they have entered inta a definitive agreement for a subsidiary of Franklin Resources to acquire Putnam
Holbdings in 3 stock and cash transaction,

A5 part of this transaction, The Putnam Advisory Company, LLE {"the Manager™), a wholly cwned subsidiary of Putnam Holdings and investment
masager to the funds would become an irdinect wholly own ed subsideary of Frapklin Resourees,

The transaction is subject 1o customany clesing condisons, including receipt of applicable regulatony approvals. Subject te such approvals and
the satisfaction of these conditions, the transaction is currently expected m be consummated in the fourth quarter of 2023,

Futnarm Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) )
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2023 10

31

405,629,231 58,735,113
42,471,568 6,149,883
16,016 2,319
41,281 5,977
2,221,426 321,662
8,177,759 1,184,140
2,459,722 356,168
461,017,003 66,755,262
71,169,717 10,305,375
159,761,949 23,133,530
483,653 70,033
12,135 1,757
508,940 73,695
49,912 7,227
5,892,657 853,257
135,183 19,574
336,023 48,656
238,350,169 34,513,104
222,666,834 32,242,158
222,608,607 32,233,726
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2023 10 31
3,048,748 571,779
4,352 630
(8,876,578) (1,285,328)
(4,923,478) (712,920)
1,710,532 247,685
43,287 6,268
23,032 3,335
188,778 27,335
35,057 5,076
50,024 7,243
43,393 6,283
(144,190) (20,879)
1,949,913 282,347
(6,873,391) (995, 267)
(4,882,367) (706,967)

(11,755,758)

(1,702,234)

(11,755,758)

(1,702,234)
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217,330,453 223,194,312

33,299,130 13,612,990

143,450

(1,873,690) (1,226,480)

31,425,440 12,529,960
2023 30 5.35 178,290,852
2023 10 31 5.09 160,010,707
(4.86) (10.25)
2023 30 5.26 71,571,689
2023 10 31 5.00 62,597,900
(4.94) (12.54)
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2023
239,405 34,666
1,587 230
237,818 34,436
13,063,280
32,186,670
5.19 752
5.28 765
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2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

12
12
12
12
12
12

54,163,798
54,163,798
54,163,798
54,163,798
78,008,919
78,008,919
78,008,919
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78
78
78
78
113
113
113
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2024

2,401.2

103

98,049.7

97

101,511.5

37

104,655.7

39.6

67.9

247.3

103.8

965.4

471.8

7,439.5

15

11,196.3

11

21,718.3

26.8

95.7

293

348,990.4
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2023 2022 30

328

23 103

23 25 193

2024 30
144 .80
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2023 30

2023 30
239,809 34,724,343
102,677 14,867,630
28,846 4,176,901 55,634 8,055,803
33,766 4,889,317
11,274 1,632,475
443,160 64,169,568
70,802 10,252,130
93,909 13,598,023
12,171 1,762,361
121,125 17,538,900
298,007 43,151,414

1,000

78,009 11,295,703
66,908 9,688,278
144,917 20,983,982
236 34,173
145,153 21,018,154
443,160 64,169,568
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2023 30
1,488,143 215,483,106
27,993 4,053,386
1,516,136 219,536,493
239,222 34,639,346
234,594 33,969,211
240,746 34,860,021
197,781 28,638,689
43,074 6,237,115
124,044 17,961,571
1,079,461 156,305,953
436,675 63,230,540
16,762 2,427,138
453,437 65,657,678
103,308 14,958,998
350,129 50,698,679
82 11,874
350,211 50,710,553
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2022

2023

10

30

30
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2023 30
1,000 78,009 166,779 82) 244,706 229 244,935
350,129 350,129 350,129
82 82 82
(450,000) (450,000) (450,000)
7 7
1,000 78,009 66,908 144,917 236 145,153
2023 30
1,000 11,295,703 24,149,599 (11,874) 35,433,429 33,159 35,466,588
50,698,679 50,698,679 50,698,679
11,874 11,874 11,874
(65,160,000) (65, 160,000) (65,160,000)
1,014 1,014
1,000 11,295,703 9,688,278 20,983,982 34,173 21,018,154

169/271



170/271

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30
350,129 50,698,679
(1,553) (224,874)
(161) (23,313)
(336) (48,653)
2,884 417,603
(48,022) (6,953,586)
(5,014) (726,027)
(2,000) (289, 600)
92,413 13,381,402
388,340 56,231,632
(3,522) (509, 986)
8,033 1,163,178

9% 13,901

4,607 667,004
(450,000) (65,160,000)
7 1,014
(449,993) (65,158,986)
(57,046) (8,260,261)
296,855 42,984,604
239,809 34,724,343
12,089 1,750,487



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30
FAI
FAI
FAI Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC FAS Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ

Advisers, LLC Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin
Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC
Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC

2023 11 21

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
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NAV

2023 30
21.2
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NAV

50
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AUM
AUM

AUM

AUM
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1,122,188 1,122,188
5,016 5,016
661 661
339,109 27,993 367,102
21,169 21,169
1,488,143 27,993 1,516,136
2023 30
28,846
10,707
16,081
55,634
2023 30
10,204 18,642 28,846
10,204 18,642 28,846
3 16,081 16,081

1771271



2023

2023

30

30

2027

2033
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93,882
11,000

(1,152)
(422)
103,308

24,290
5,545
5,705
1,191
2,740

39,471

(5,705)

33,766

5.7

21



2023

2020

2023

30
2018
2023
30
401
50

2002

2023
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28,936
161
(559)
3,452
(5,584)
26,406

5.0

2019 2023

12 3.2

100
85
5.3

AIP
USIP



0.8
AlIP
USIP
USIP
2023 30 USIP
2022 30
2023 30
2023 30
23.7

10
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1998 ESIP
2017 EIP
31.7 ESIP
EIP 140.0 23.0
EIP 12.2 14.7
1,518,988 26.06
1,274,819 22.56
(1,385,551) 24.61
(24,100) 23.01
2,786 27.50
1,386,942 24.37
1.5
37.3

1,127,865 339,109
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2023 30

11

2023 11 17

37.0
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27,993
12,469

1,127,865 379,571

231,766
233,715
5,744
85,468
27,105
106,032

689,830

181/271

96,852
121,125

36,372
107,174

70,802

500
0.113
2024 30
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2023

{in thousards, excepl share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 239,809
Receivables 102,677
Investments (including $28,846 at fair value) 55634
Deferred taxes 33,766
Other 11,274
Total Assets ........... —_— o -~ T —- 443,160
Liabilities
Due to affiliated entities, net £ 70,802
Compensation and benefits 93,909
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12171
Income taxes 121,125
Total liabilities 298,007
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholder's Equity
Comman stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding e
Additional paid in capital 78,009
Retained eamings 66,908
Accumulated other comprehensive loss —
Total Franklin Advisers, Inc, stockholder's equity 144,917
Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 236
Total stockholder's equity 145,153
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity R S e S e o 443,160

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

{in thousands)
Operating Revenues

Investment management fees 2 1,488,143
Service fees from affiliated entities 27,993
Total operating revenues 1,516,136
Operating Expenses
Fund-related expenses 239,222
Advertising and promotion 234 5984
Compensation and benefits 240,746
Sales, distribution and marketing 197,781
Infarmation systems and technology 43,074
General, administrative and other 124,044
Total operating expenses 1,079,461
Operating Income .. . : E e L e Rk o . i 436,675
Imvestment and other income, net 16,762
Income before taxes 453 437
Taxes on income 103,308
MNet Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. .. ... ... ... ... ........ s 350,129
Other Comprehensive Income . ... .. : TS T G S i e : B2
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. : e | 350,211

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023
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{in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Deferred income taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to affiliated entities, net

Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities

Furchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposails of property and equipment, net

Net cash provided by investing activities .. ... .. .. e

Dividends to parent
Moncontrolling interests

MNet cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endof Year ... ... ...... ... ... ........

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

&

185/271

] 350,129

(1,553)
{161)

(336)
2,884
(48,022)
(5,014)
(2,000)
82,413

388,340

(3,522)
8,033
96

....... 4,607

(450,000)
7

(449,993)

(57,046)
236,855

. $ 239,809

¥ 12,089
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin® or the "parent"). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin (“affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC (*FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC, Franklin
Venture Partners, LLC, Frankiin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally acceptad in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 21,
2023, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAl and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AMVIE is an entity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees eamed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service, The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management (“AUM").

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an eguity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $3.7 million and investment management fee
receivables of 0.2 million.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products. The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investrment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year,

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities®). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operaling revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company has a master netting agreement with Franklin and affiliated entities. As amounts due
to and from Franklin and affiliated entities are a determinable amount and the right of offset is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated entities are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, nat,

The Company eamns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distribution and
marketing expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to wvaluation
technigues used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation technigues
are observable or uncbservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values ("NAV™) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than guoted prices that
are ocbservable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumplions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or

8
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unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The
price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company’s investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis, Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countrigs,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business.
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by $21.2 million at September 30, 2023, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value,

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other equity and debt investments.

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in eamnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using guoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price guotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investrments in equity method investees consist of equity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method when the Company's
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in eamings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers gqualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value, Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Naoneontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlerment.  Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income {loss) attributable to third-pary
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in
the statement of income.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is praobable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not accur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Mulliple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined to be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when investment
products' performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts, These fees are
recognized when the amount is no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate to
investment management services that were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by investment products
and is calculated using fair value methods derived primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices
or price quotes adjusted for observable price movements after the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company's global valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for
which market prices are not readily available are valued internally using various methodologies
which incorporate significant unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company’s rale
as principal as it contrals the delegated services provided to customers.

10
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Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the senvices are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relaling to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the "Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet, Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin, The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assels, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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3.

Revenues

Operating revenues by the customer’s geographic area were as follows:

Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,122,188 — 1,122,188

Americas Excluding United States 5016 — 5,016

Europe and Asia — 661
Earned from Affiliated Entities 339,109 27,993 367,102
Earned from Third Parties 21,169 — 21,169

Total . ..

1,488,143

’ 488, : 1,516,136

27,993

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.
Investments

Investmeants consisted of the following at September 30, 2023;

(in thousands)
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts

Other investments
Investments in equity method investees
Other investments

Total .

Fair Value Measurements

$ 28,846
10,707
16,081
$ 55,634

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2023:

fir thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investrments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts $ 10204 § 18642 § — § 28,846
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value.......... $§ fuizm $ 1Eiﬁ42 % — % EBisdﬁ

12
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Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
{in thousands) Level Value Fair Value
3 8 16,081 § 16,081

Equity securities

6. Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

{fn thousands)
Current expense

Federal ;] 93,882

State 11,000

Deferred benefit

Federal (1,152)
State (422)
Total...... .. ool B g T S D R D e, 5 103,308

The: significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2023 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits % 24,290
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5,545
Fareign tax credit 5,705
Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,191
Other 2.740
Total deferred tax assels 39,471
Valuation allowance (5,705)
Deferred Tax Assets ................... eps SRRy : . % 33,766

At September 30, 2023 there were $5.7 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2033, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.

13
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The tax expense differs from the federal statutory rate of 21% due to state taxes and other
permanant differences.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

{n thousarnds)

Balance at beginning of year 3 28,936
Additions for tax positions of prior years 161
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (559)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 3,452
Expiration of statute of limitations (5,584)
Balance at End of Yaar .. ......cciveiverrvsrivarisnnssarinssssisisanasesi B 255405

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in future periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefils is
included in income taxes payable to parant in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2023 was approximately $5.0 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above,

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin. The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the State of New York 2018 to 2023, the States of
California and Massachusetts 2020 to 2023, and the States of Minnesota and New Jersey and U.S,
federal 2019 to 2023.

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2023 could
decrease by an estimated $3.2 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of

statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settiements
with state tax authonties.

14
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7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not rmaterially affect the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's expense related to the plan
for the fiscal was $5.3 million,

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklins Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the "AIP"), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP™)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP™) and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP", and collectively the "Plans"). The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of
Directors determines the terms and conditions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $31.7million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.8 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year.

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company and/or its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's commaon stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2023, 12.2
million shares and 14,7 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entile holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of

common stock once the awards vest. Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.
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Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the

fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Mon-vested balance at September 30,2022 .. ... . . 1518988 & 26.08
Granted 1,274,819 22 56
Vested (1,385,551) 24.61
Forfeited/canceled (24,100) 230
Transferred in, nat 2 786 27.50
Mon-vested Balance at September 30, 2023 ; s 1,386,942 % 24.37

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $23.7
million at Septerber 30, 2023. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $37.3 million.
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10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
{in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees g 1,127,865 § 339,100
Service fees from affiiates == 27,993
Investment Income — 12,469
Total Revenues from Affiliates ... ...................... § 1,127,865 § 379,571
Fund-related expenseas — 231,766
Advertising and promaotion — 233,715
Compensation and benefits — 5,744
Sales, distribution and marketing 5 — % B85 468
Infarmation systems and technalogy — 27,105
General, administrative and other — 106,032
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates ... ............. . & — 5 689,830
Receivables 3 96,652 % —_—
Income taxes payable to parent S 121,125
Due to affiliated entilies, net is comprised of the following:
Due fram affiiated entities o 36,372
Due to affiiated entities — 107,174
70,802

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.113% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2024 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FA| and Franklin. There are no amounts receivable under
this agreement as of September 30, 2023.

11. Subsequent Events

On Movember 17, 2023, the Company declared a dividend of $37.0 million,
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2022 30

2022 30
296,855 42,984,604
101,679 14,723,119
39,630 5,738,424 62,786 9,091,413
14,085 2,039,508
32,213 4,664,442
12,032 1,742,234
519,650 75,245,320
132,909 19,245,223
98,923 14,324,050
14,171 2,051,961
28,712 4,157,498
274,715 39,778,732

1,000

78,009 11,295,703
166,779 24,149,599
(82) (11,874)
244,706 35,433,429
229 33,159
244,935 35,466,588
519,650 75,245,320
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2022 30
1,673,072 242,260,826
19,558 2,831,998
1,692,630 245,092,824
263,527 38,158,710
224,461 32,501,953
219,510 31,785,048
217,135 31,441,148
40,828 5,911,894
117,686 17,040,933
1,083,147 156,839, 686
609,483 88,253,138
(6,382) (924,114)
603,101 87,329,025
140,042 20,278,082
463,059 67,050,943
463,059 67,050,943
(79) (11,439)
462,980 67,039,504
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2022 30
1,000 78,036 238,720 ®) 316,753 221 316,974
463,059 463,059 463,059
@n 79) (106) (106)
(535,000) (535,000) (535,000)
8 8
1,000 78,009 166,779 (82) 244,706 229 244,935
2022 30
1,000 11,299,613 34,566,656 (434) 45,865,834 32,001 45,897,835
67,050,943 67,050,943 67,050,943
(3,910) (11,439) (15,349) (15,349)
(77,468,000) (77,468,000) (77,468,000)
1,158 1,158
1,000 11,295,703 24,149,599 (11,874) 35,433,429 33,159 35,466,588
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2022 30
463,059 67,050,943
(421) (60,961)
(898) (130,030)
1,020 147,696
26,319 3,810,991
128,206 18,564,229
2,187 316,678
(100, 225) (14,512,580)
(8,700) (1,259,760)
(1,812) (262,378)
(5,951) (861,705)
502,784 72,803,123
(5,944) (860,691)
14 2,027
2,561 370,833
(3,369) (487,831)
(535,000) (77,468,000)
Q@n (3,910)
8 1,158
(535,019) (77,470,751)
(35,604) (5.155,459)
332,459 48,140,063
296,855 42,984,604
145,710 21,098,808
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2022 30
FAI
FAI
FAI Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC FAS Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ

Advisers, LLC Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin
Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC
Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC

2022 11 14

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
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AUM
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2022 30
13.4
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1,240,821 1,240,821
1,447 1,447
381,935 19,558 401,493
48,869 48,869
1,673,072 19,558 1,692,630
30
31,721
7,909
39,630
7,075
16,081
62,786
30
19,526 12,195 31,721
6 7,903 7,909
19,532 20,098 39,630
3 16,081 16,081
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122,606
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(1,170)
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140,042

20,518
6,077
4,512
1,432
4,186

36,725
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126,767 90.5
12,577 9.0
2,212 1.6
(1,514) (1.1)
140,042 100.0
23.2
2021 30 26,075
379
O]
5,393
(2,907)
2022 30 28,936
2022 30 6.1
2019 2022
2018 2022
2022 30
12 6.5
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2021 30 2,199,194 23.37
741,977 35.52

(1,424,529) 21.54

(10,898) 26.75

13,244 30.01

2022 30 1,518,988 26.06

2022 30
27.1 1.5
41.7

10

1,242,268 381,935
19,558

1,242,268 401,493

256,777
223,550
5,360
97,967
20,971
100,923

705,548

95,732
14,085
132,909
28,712

FAI 500
0.375
FAI 2026 11 15
2022 30
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2022

{in thouzands, excepl share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 296,855
Receivables 101,679
Investments (including $39,630 at fair value) 62,786
Due from parent and affiliated entities 14,085
Deferred taxes 32,213
Other 12,032
Total Assets ... ... ... R e I ey R P A Lo $ 519,650
Liabilities
Due to parent and affiliated entities 3 132,909
Compensation and benefits 98,923
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,171
Income taxes payable to parent 28,712
Total liahilities 274,715

Commitments and Contingencies (Note T)

Stockholder's Equity

Commaon stock, na par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding —
Additional paid in capital 78,009
Retained eamings 166,779
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (82)
Total Franklin Advisers, Inc. stockholder's equity 244 706
Monredeemable noncontrolling interests 229
Total stockholder's equity 244 935
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity . . . ; ] 519,650

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

{in thousands)
Operating Revenues

Investment management fees z 1,673,072
Service fees from affiliated entities 19,558
Total operating revenues 1,682,630
Operating Expenses
Fund-related expenses 263,527
Advertising and promotion 224 461
Compensation and benefits 219,510
Sales, distribution and marketing 217,135
Information systems and technology 40,828
General, administrative and other 117,686
Total operating expenses 1,083,147
Operating Income ? ; : . i ; z 609,483
Investment and other loss, net (6,382)
Income before taxes 603,101
Taxes on income 140,042
Met income 463,069
Less: Met income attributable to noncontrolling interests —
Net Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. : 2 .. § 463,059
Other Comprehensive Loss (79)
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. . .. bR, | 462,980

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

{in thousands)
MNet income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Net gain on investments
Deferred income taxes
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables and other

Decrease in due from parent and affiliated entities
Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to parent and affiliated entities
Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities ... ...

Furchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposals of property and equipment, net

Net cash used in investing activities ... . ... .. ..

Dividends to parent
Return of capital to parent
MNoncontrolling interests

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(&
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] 463,089

(421)
(898)
1,020

26,319
128,206
2,187
{100,225)
(8,700)
(1,812)
(5,951)

502,784

(5,944)
14
2,561

(3,369)

(535,000)
(27)

8
(535,019)

(35,604)
332,459

$ 296,855

£ 145,710
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a whaolly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin® or the "parent”). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Cormmission. The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin (“affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC (*FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystermatiQ Advisers., LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GF, LLC, Franklin
\enture Partners, LLC, Franklin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investrment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consclidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 14,
2022, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAl and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AVIE is an enlity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees earmed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service, The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management ("ALUM") and the life of the
investment product,

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $5.2 million and investment management fees
of $2.3 million.

While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products, The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year.

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities”). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operating revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company earmns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distribution and
markeling expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entiraty.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values ("NAV™) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 gquoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumplions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or
unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumplions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company's investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countries,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business,
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Faderal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by £13.4 million at September 30, 2022, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value,

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other squity and debt investments,

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of noncensolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in earnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using quoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investments in equity method investees consist of eguity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the eguity method when the Company's
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carmed at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in eamings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers gqualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value, Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Naoneontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlerment.  Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of eguity. Net income {loss) attributable to third-pary
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is probable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not occur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Multiple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined ta be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generated when investment products'
performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts. These fees are recognized when
the amount is no langer probable of significant reversal and may relate to investment management
services that were provided in prior periods. AUM is generally based on the fair value of the
underlying securities heid by investment products and is calculated using fair value methods
derived primarily from unadjusted guoted market prices, unadjusted independent third-party broker
or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices or price quotes adjusted for observable
price movements after the close of the primary market in accordance with the Company’s global
valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for which market prices are not readily
available are valued internally using wvarious methodologies which incorporate significant
unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and represent an insignificant percentage
of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company's role
as principal as it controls the delegated services provided to customers.

10
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the senvices are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relaling to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the "Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet, Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin, The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assels, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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3.

Revenues

Operating revenues by the customer’s geographic area were as follows:

Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,240,821 — 1,240,821

Americas Excluding United States 1,447 —_ 1,447
Earned from Affiliated Entities 381,935 19,558 401,493
Earned from Third Parties 48,869 — 48 869
B« | 1,673,072 19,558 1,692,630

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2022

{in thousands)

Sponsored funds and separate accounts
Other equity and debt investments

Total investments, at fair value
Investments in equity methad investees
Other investmenits

Total ...........

Fair Value Measurements

5 31,721
7,909

39,630

7.075

16,081

5 62,786

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2022;

{ire thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts = $ 19526 $ 12185 § — §F 3.2
Other equity and debt investments 6 7,903 — 7,909
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value............. 5 19‘!532 5 2{|!uaa $ —_ & 39553[!
Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:
{in thousands) Fair Value Carrying Estimated
Level Value Fair Value
Equity securities 3 16,081 % 16,081

12
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

B. Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

{in thousands)

Current expense

Federal 3 122,606

State 18,308

Deferred benefit

Federal {1,170)

State 298

Tobal e B 140,042

The significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2022 were as follows:

{in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits g 20,518

Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 6,077

Foreign tax credit 48512

Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,432

Other 4,186
Total deferred tax assets 36,725

Valuation allowance (4.512)

Deferred Tax Assets . ... ... _ ... .. B B .. 8 32,213

At September 30, 2022 there were $5.3 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2023 and 2032, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.

The following reconciles the amount of tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 21% and taxes
on income as reflected in the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year:

Percent of Tax

{in Brousards) Tax Provision Provision
Federal taxes at statutory rate $ 126,767 90.5 %
State taxes, net of federal tax effect 12 57T 9.0 %
Urncertain tax position 2212 1.6 %
Oither (1,514) {1.1)%
Tax Provision . . 3 140,042 100.0 %
Effective tax rate 23.2%

13
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

{in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 2021 3 26,075
Additions for tax positions of prior years 379
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (4)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 5,393
Expiration of statute of limitations (2,907)
Balance at September 30, 2022 . . . - . R .. % 28,936

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in fulure periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefits is
included in income taxes payable to parent in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2022 was approximately $6.1 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above.

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin, The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the US. federal and State of Massachuselts
(2019-2022} and State of California, Minnesota, New Jersey and Mew York (2018 to 2022).

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2022 could
decrease by an estimated $6.5 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of
statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settlements
with state tax authorities.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company's business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity,

8. Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's portion of expense related to
the plan for the fiscal was $5.2 million.

14
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklins Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “AlIP"), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP™)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1928 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP™) and the Amended and Reslated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP"), The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of Directors determines the terms
and conditions of awards under the AIP, the USIP, the ESIP and the EIF.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $32.8 million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.7 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year. The Company's liability to Franklin
for stock-based compensation as of September 30, 2022 was $12.6 million and is included in
amounts due to affiliated entities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Stock and Stock Unit Awards

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company andfor its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's common stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2022, 19.0
million shares and 14.5 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entifle holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of
common stock once the awards vest.  Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.

Stock and stock unit award activity was as follows during the fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Time-Based Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested balance at September 30, 2021 ... .. . 2189,194 % 23.37
Granted 741,977 35.52
Vested (1,424 529) 21.54
Forfeited/canceled {10,898) 26.75
Transferred in 13,244 30.01
Medified - —
Mon-vested Balance at September 30, 2022 . . . 1,518,988 % 26.06

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $27.1
million at September 30, 2022. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $41.7 million.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

10.

11.

Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
{in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees 3 1242268 § 381,935
Service fees from affilates — 19,558
Total Revenues from Affiliates R A e | 1,242,268 3% 401,493
Fund administration fees — 256,777
Advertising and promaotion — 223,550
Compensation and benefils — 5,360
Sales, distribution and marketing ] — 3 97 967
Information systems and technology — 20,971
General, administrative and other — 100,923
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates . . -1 — 5 705,548
Receivables % 95732 § —
Due from affiliated entities o 14,085
Due to affiliated entities — 132,909
Income taxes payable to parent — 28,712

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of 500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.375% per annum. The agreement expires on November 15, 2026
unless terminated by mutual written consent of FAl and Frankiin. There are no amounts receivable
under this agreement as of September 30, 2022.

Investment and Other Income, net

Other income (expenses) consisted of the following for the fiscal year:

{in thousands)

Investment and Other Income, Net

Dividend income § 2114

Interest income 1,082

Losses on investments, net {9.829)
Other, net 251

T 1 | T e e A R R R ) e e e e (6,382)

Substantially all of the Company's dividend income was generated by investments in
nonconsolidated funds. Net losses recognized on the Company's equily securities measured at
fair value that were held at September 30, 2022 were $8.6 million,
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MaplesFS Limited

2023 500,000 7,240

State Street Bank and Trust Campany

2023 242.0 5,042

225

State Street Cayman Trust Company Ltd.
CIMA
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Citibank Europe plc

2022 12 10,240,000 14 8,275
132781 1998

2023 1,350

2023 17,710

Putnam International Distributors,Ltd.

2023 81,439,664 117 9,246
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30, 2023
and 2022, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (loss), of changes in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred
to asthe "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Fund as of April 30, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsihilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we;

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Fund' s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Manager's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the other
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 2, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, Cdlifornia
November 21, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for

one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by areasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, Cdlifornia
November 14, 2022
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